
  1 

 

Agenda 

 
Contact Officer: Paul Bateman, Democratic Services Officer 
Tel: 07895 213740 
 

 

E-mail: paul.bateman@southandvale.gov.uk 
 
Date: 5 October 2021 
Website: www.southoxon.gov.uk 

 
 

 

A MEETING OF THE 
 

Planning Committee 

 

WILL BE HELD ON WEDNESDAY 13 OCTOBER 2021 AT 6.00 PM 
 

FIRST FLOOR MEETING SPACE, 135 EASTERN AVENUE, MILTON PARK, 
OX14 4SB 
 
 

You can watch this meeting via this weblink: 
https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCTj2pCic8vzucpzIaSWE3UQ 
 
If you are attending in person you should bring a portable device, such as a laptop or 
tablet to listen to and watch the meeting. You should also bring a headset/headphones. 

 

Members of the Committee: 

David Bretherton (Chair) 

Peter Dragonetti (Vice-
Chair) 
Ken Arlett 
Tim Bearder 

Elizabeth Gillespie 
Lorraine Hillier 
Axel Macdonald 

Jo Robb 
Ian Snowdon 
Alan Thompson 

 
Substitutes 

Celia Wilson 
Sam Casey-Rerhaye 
Stefan Gawrysiak 
Victoria Haval 

Alexandrine Kantor 
Mocky Khan 
Jane Murphy 
Caroline Newton 

Sue Roberts 
David Turner 
Kellie Hinton 

 

Alternative formats of this publication are available on request.  These include 
large print, Braille, audio, email and easy read. For this or any other special 
requirements (such as access facilities) please contact the officer named on 
this agenda.  Please give as much notice as possible before the meeting. 

Patrick Arran 
Head of Legal and Democratic 

Public Document Pack



  2 

 

1  Chair's announcements   
 

To receive any announcements from the chair and general housekeeping matters. 
 
2  Apologies for absence   

 
To record apologies for absence and the attendance of substitute members. 
 
3  Declarations of interest   

 
To receive any declarations of disclosable pecuniary interests in respect of items on 
the agenda for this meeting.    
 
4  Urgent business   

 
To receive notification of any matters which the chairman determines should be 
considered as urgent business and the special circumstances which have made the 
matters urgent and to receive any notification of any applications deferred or 
withdrawn. 

 
5  Proposals for site visits   

 
6  Public participation   

 
To receive any statements from members of the public that have registered to speak 
on planning applications which are being presented to this committee meeting.   
 

Development control applications 

 
 

Planning applications - background papers and additional 
information 

 
All the background papers with the exception of those papers marked 
exempt/confidential (eg those held in enforcement files) used in the reports in this 
agenda are held in the application file (working file) referenced by the application 
number.  
 
Any additional information received following the publication of this agenda will be 
reported and summarised at the meeting. 

 

 
Summary index of applications 

 

 Site Address Proposal Application No Page 

 
     
7  P20/S3244/FUL The construction and operation of a P20/S3244/FUL 5 - 30 



  3 

 

- Land to the 
North West of 
Stoke Talmage   

solar photovoltaic farm and 
associated infrastructure, including 
inverters, substation compound, 
security cameras, fencing, access 
tracks and landscaping. As clarified 
by information received 26 October 
2020, 11 November 2020, 22 
January 2021, 1 and 9 February 
2021, 10 and 13 September 2021.   

 

     
8  P21/S1388/FUL 

- Culham 
Science 
Centre, Clifton 
Hampden   

Construction of two parking hubs (as 
amplified by drainage strategy 
received 1 July 2021, Written 
Scheme of Investigation and 
Archaeological Evaluation dated 
June 2021 and September 2021 and 
amended by additional drainage 
information received 9 August 2021 
and amplified by Ecological 
Information submitted on the 13 
September 2021). 

P21/S1388/FUL 31 - 52 

 

     
9  P21/S1805/HH - 

Vincent House, 
High Street, 
Long 
Wittenham   

Removal of existing garage and 
replacement with oak detailed 
garage as amended by plans 10A, 
11A, 12AB and 13 A which reduces 
the height of the proposed garage. 

P21/S1805/HH 53 - 66 

 

     
10  P21/S2385/FUL 

- Land at 
Woodcote 
Road, South 
Stoke   

Variation of condition 2 of application 
P19/S2865/RM for the removal of 
the detached carport to Plots 2 & 3, 
removal of the carport to Plot 1, 
omission of the bike store to Plot 3, a 
new window to Plot 3 (east 
elevation) and relocation of 2 parking 
spaces to Plot 2. (As amplified by 
tree protection and landscape 
information received 6 August 2021). 
Application for approval of reserved 
matters relating to appearance, 
landscaping, layout and scale 
following application P17/S3206/O 
for residential development (up to 5 
dwellings), and associated works, 
including access. 

P21/S2385/FUL 67 - 86 

 

     
11  P21/S2637/FUL 

- Land at 4 
Ernest Road, 
Didcot   

Proposed new dwelling. (As 
amplified by energy statement 
received 31 August 2021). 

P21/S2637/FUL 87 - 
102 

 



  4 

 

 

 

 



South Oxfordshire District Council – Planning Committee – 13 October 2021 

 

 
 APPLICATION NO. P20/S3244/FUL 
 APPLICATION TYPE FULL APPLICATION 
 REGISTERED 16.9.2020 
 PARISH PYRTON 
 WARD MEMBERS Caroline Newton 

Anna Badcock 
 APPLICANT Cornwell Solar Farm Ltd (Owned by Low Carbon)  
 SITE Land to the North West of Stoke Talmage, OX9 7HB 
 PROPOSAL The construction and operation of a solar 

photovoltaic farm and associated infrastructure, 
including inverters, substation compound, security 
cameras, fencing, access tracks and landscaping  

 AMENDMENTS As clarified by information received 26 October 
2020, 11 November 2020, 22 January 2021, 1 and 9 
February 2021, 10 and 13 September 2021.   

 OFFICER Emma Bowerman 
 

 
1.0 INTRODUCTION AND PROPOSAL 
1.1 Officers recommend that planning permission is granted.  This report explains how 

officers have reached this conclusion.  
  

1.2 The application is referred to the Planning Committee as the officer recommendation 
conflicts with the views of two Parish Councils in which the application site is located.  
The application site extends over three Parishes; Wheatfield, Stoke Talmage and 
Pyrton.  It also adjoins the Parishes of Great Haseley and Tetsworth.    
   

1.3 The 67-hectare application site (which is shown on the OS extract attached as 
Appendix A) is located to the northwest of the small settlement of Stoke Talmage.  
The site is predominantly one large arable field, with part of a smaller arable field 
forming the most westerly extent of the site.  The site is categorised as Grade 3b 
(moderate quality) agricultural land and most of the land surrounding the site is in 
agricultural use.   
 

1.4 Haseley Brook is to the north of the site and the land slopes in a northward direction 
towards the Brook.  There is an area of woodland, Cornwell Copse, to the south.  
Residential properties adjoin the southernmost part of the site and a Public Right of 
Way (Pyrton Footpath 14) crosses the site.  
 

1.5 The site itself does not fall within any areas of special designation.  Spartum Fen Site 
of Special Scientific Interest (SSSI) is around 700m to the northwest of the site.  There 
is a separation of around 5km to the edge of the Chilterns Area of Outstanding Natural 
Beauty (AONB).   
 

1.6 The listed structures closest to the site are Latchford House, which is around 500m to 
the northeast of the site, and The Old Rectory in Stoke Talmage around 1km to the 
south.  Both of these are Grade II Listed Buildings.   
 

1.7 Most of the site falls within Flood Zone 1 (lowest probability of flooding).  There is an 
area of Flood Zone 2 and 3 around Haseley Brook along the northern boundary of the 
site.     
 

Page 5

Agenda Item 7

http://www.southoxon.gov.uk/ccm/planning/ApplicationDetails.jsp?REF=P20/S3244/FUL


South Oxfordshire District Council – Planning Committee – 13 October 2021 

1.8 The application proposes the construction and operation of a solar photovoltaic farm 
and associated infrastructure.  There is an overhead electricity line and pylons 
approximately 80m to the north of the site, into which the proposed development 
would connect.  The panels would generate up to 49.99 megawatts (MW), enough to 
power approximately 15,000 homes.  Based on the scale and nature of the proposal, 
it is Environmental Impact Appraisal (EIA) development and the application is 
therefore accompanied by an Environmental Statement (ES).     
 

1.9 Planning permission is sought to operate the plant for 40 years, at which point it would 
be decommissioned and the land returned to its previous state.  The development 
includes the following equipment: 
 
- Ground mounted rows of solar PV panels running from east to west across the 

site with approximately 3-4m between each row of arrays. 
 

- At the lowest edge the arrays would be approximately 0.9m above ground and up 
to approximately 2.7m at the highest edge.  

 
- Approximately 30 inverters within units similar to shipping containers (12m x 2.5m 

and 3m high).  
 

- A substation compound of up to 50m x 50m consisting of overhead electrical 
busbars and other electrical equipment along with a control building and a switch 
room.  These structures would be up to approximately 12.5m x 5.5m x 6m high.  

 
- Stock-proof perimeter fencing (mesh with wooden posts or similar) to a height of 

approximately 2m along the outer edges of the site.  
 

- A system of CCTV / infra-red cameras on poles up to approximately 3m high, 
spaces at approximately 50m intervals along the security fence.   

 
- Internal access tracks  
 

1.10 The application plans are attached as Appendix B.  The application is also 
accompanied by several technical documents including the ES and an Alternative Site 
Assessment. The application is also accompanied by a Statement of Community 
Involvement which provides details of the pre-application public consultation 
undertaken with local communities.  These supporting documents can be reviewed on 
the council’s website at the following link:  
https://data.southoxon.gov.uk/ccm/support/Main.jsp?MODULE=ApplicationDetails&R
EF=P20/S3244/FUL 
 

1.11 The applicant has not been able to fix all of the details of the development at this 
stage because the final technology selection and layout would be determined by an 
appointed contractor.  The applicant has therefore sought to incorporate sufficient 
design flexibility into the application in relation to the dimensions and layout of the 
structures.     
 

1.12 The assessments that form part of the application and EIA have therefore been 
undertaken adopting the principles of the “Rochdale Envelope.”  This approach 
involves assessing the maximum parameters for the elements where flexibility is 
required and provides a worst-case scenario.  For example, the solar panels have 
been assessed for the purposes of landscape and visual impact as being a maximum 
of 2.7m high, when then may be lower at around 2.5m.   
 

Page 6

https://data.southoxon.gov.uk/ccm/support/Main.jsp?MODULE=ApplicationDetails&REF=P20/S3244/FUL
https://data.southoxon.gov.uk/ccm/support/Main.jsp?MODULE=ApplicationDetails&REF=P20/S3244/FUL


South Oxfordshire District Council – Planning Committee – 13 October 2021 

1.13 The Rochdale Envelope assessment approach is an acknowledged way of assessing 
a proposed development comprising EIA development where uncertainty exists, and 
necessary flexibility is sought.  To provide clearly defined parameters, the applicant 
has split the site into five Development Zones (attached as Appendix C).  The zones 
define where certain infrastructure would be located within the site, but there is 
flexibility in terms of the layout within each zone.   
 

1.14 The application has been updated on several occasions with additional information 
submitted in relation to heritage, ecology, drainage and archaeology.  This included 
an update to the ES to include a geophysical survey.  The application plans were also 
updated during the application process to increase the buffer to a veteran tree.     
 

1.15 Low Carbon is also funding the development process for another solar farm project in 
the local area at Harlesford Farm, and this is being considered under application 
P20/S3245/FUL.  This site is approximately 400m to the east of the application site.   

 
2.0 
2.1 

SUMMARY OF CONSULTATIONS & REPRESENTATIONS 
A summary of the latest responses received to the proposal is below.  A full copy of all 
the comments made including those in respect of previous iterations of the proposals 
can be seen online at: 
https://data.southoxon.gov.uk/ccm/support/Main.jsp?MODULE=ApplicationDetails&RE
F=P20/S3244/FUL 
 

2.2 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Parish Councils, local bodies and residents: 
 

Pyrton Parish Council  
 

Object 

 Solar farms should be focused on previously 
developed land. 

 Cumulative impact on the availability of agricultural 
land and on natural environment / landscape. 

 Countryside would be overloaded with large scale 
renewable energy projects.  

 Loss of agricultural land. 

 Restrict and endanger wildlife movements 

 Impact on areas natural environment, landscape and 
biodiversity. 

 Unspoilt countryside not appropriate for a solar farm.  

 Commented that there should be a requirement for 
the developers to restore the site.   
 

Stoke Talmage Parish 
Council  
 
 

Object 

 Loss of farmland. 

 Visual impact on countryside would be impossible to 
mitigate. 

 Roads inaccessible for construction vehicles. 

 Traffic increase. 

 Obtrusive feature in countryside as not amongst 
other non-agricultural development.   

 

Wheatfield Parish 
Council   
 

No comment  

Great Haseley Parish 
Council  

Support  

Page 7

https://data.southoxon.gov.uk/ccm/support/Main.jsp?MODULE=ApplicationDetails&REF=P20/S3244/FUL
https://data.southoxon.gov.uk/ccm/support/Main.jsp?MODULE=ApplicationDetails&REF=P20/S3244/FUL


South Oxfordshire District Council – Planning Committee – 13 October 2021 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  Commented that a gap of at least 100m should be 
provided to Stoke Grange and that mature 
landscaping should be secured for screening. 

 

Tetsworth Parish 
Council  
 

No objection  

 Commented that the positive changes in the plans as 
part of the consultation feedback are welcome.   

 

South Oxfordshire 
District of Campaign 
to Protect Rural 
England (CPRE)    
 

Object 

 Unacceptable and massive industrialisation of the 
countryside. 

 Inappropriate use of land which would be better 
employed for its proper purpose of efficient 
production of food rather than the production of solar 
energy. 

 Unnecessary and unacceptable landscape harm 
especially on open grassland sites.  

 

South Oxfordshire 
District of CPRE   
(Rights of Way)  
 

Object 

 Adverse impact on a footpath that is remote and 
provides solitude in a natural setting.  

 Introducing alien man-made structures would ruin 
ambience of path. 

 Concern that screening would be ineffective. 

 Impact on wider views across lowland Oxfordshire.  
 

Neighbour 
Representations 
 

Two received in objection (from one property) raising the 
following concerns: 

 Loss of perfectly good agricultural land. 

 Cumulative impacts are not acceptable.  

 Adverse impact on footpath. 

 Effective screening will take 15 years to establish. 

 Formation of a developed block within open 
countryside will spoil and detract from beauty of site 
and surrounding area. 

 No planning reason why the scheme has to be this 
size – driven by commercial considerations.  

 Tranquil areas should remain undisturbed by noise 
and are prized for their recreation and amenity value. 

 Countryside should be protected whether it is visible 
or not.  

 Fencing will stop free movement of animals. 

 The applicants should consider developed land, 
brownfield sites or non-agricultural land.   

 The area between Oxford Green Belt and AONBs is 
vulnerable to development of this kind. 

 Growing food is an effective use. 

 Application has not balanced need for renewable 
energy against the need for food production.  

 SODC do not have to meet a quota for renewables.  

 Off-shore renewable energy generation is preferable. 

 Application should be an outline application.  

Page 8



South Oxfordshire District Council – Planning Committee – 13 October 2021 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 Consideration should be given to financing and 
enforcing removal of panels after 40 years.  

 Biodiversity could be increased without the 
development.  

 There should be a specific measurement shown to 
Stoke Grange and separation distance to the panels 
should be increased.  

 Trees and vegetation shown incorrectly on plans and 
proposed planting not adequate.  

 Will affect consideration of potential neighbouring 
development. 

 There are better ways to be carbon neutral. 

 Consideration should be given to carbon footprint of 
production, installation and disposal of solar panels.  

 Harlesford solar farm is preferable.  
 

 

2.3 Technical consultees: 
 

Natural England  
 
 
 

No objection 

 The proposed development will not have significant 
adverse impacts on protected landscapes.   

Environment Agency 
 
 

No objection  

 Subject to conditions requiring the development to be 
carried out in accordance with the Flood Risk 
Assessment and a buffer zone to be the retained to 
the watercourse.   

 

Oxfordshire County 
Council Single 
Response  
 

Transport Development Control 
No objection  

 Subject to conditions requiring wheel washing 
facilities and a Construction Traffic Management 
Plan.  

 
Lead Local Flood Authority  
No objection  

 Subject to conditions set out by South and Vale 
drainage team 

 
Archaeology 
No objection  

 Subject to conditions to record and report matters of 
archaeological importance 

 

Climate Action Lead 
Officer 
 

Support  

 Solar farms will play an important role in the future 
local renewable energy mix. 

 To meet our Climate Emergency target of net zero by 
2030 we need to reach South Oxfordshire’s full 
potential for renewable energy infrastructure.   

 Strong case for locating energy generation as close 
as possible to demand. 

 Local generation reduces transmission losses. 

Page 9



South Oxfordshire District Council – Planning Committee – 13 October 2021 

 

Landscape Officer 
 

No objection  

 Subject to a condition detailing hard and soft 
landscape treatments together with a supporting 
Landscape and Ecological Management Plan.   

 

Countryside Officer 
 

No objection  

 Subject to conditions requiring a Construction 
Environmental Management Plan for Biodiversity and 
a Biodiversity Enhancement Plan.    

 

Forestry Officer 
 

No objection  

 Subject to conditions requiring the planting to be 
implemented and existing trees to be protected.    
 

Conservation Officer 
 

No objection  

 The significance of nearby designated heritage 
assets would not be harmed by the proposal.   

 

Drainage Officer 
 

No objection  

 Subject to a condition requiring the submission of a 
sustainable drainage scheme.  

 

Contaminated Land 
Officer 
 

No objection 

Environmental 
Protection Officer  
 

No objection 

 

 
3.0 RELEVANT PLANNING HISTORY 
3.1 P20/S2333/SCO - Withdrawn (04/08/2020) 

Request for a Screening Opinion for a solar photovoltaic farm and associated 
infrastructure. 
 
P20/S1483/SCR – Environmental Impact Assessment required (15/05/20) 
Solar Photovoltaic Farm and associated infrastructure. 
 
P20/S0847/PEJ – Pre-application response issued (12/06/2020) 
Solar Photovoltaic Farm and associated infrastructure. 

 
4.0 ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT ASSESSMENT 
4.1 Officers have considered the size and nature of the proposed development, the 

characteristics of the site and cumulative impacts.  Based on the likely environmental 
impacts of the development, the development is considered to be Environmental 
Impact Assessment (EIA) development for the purposes of the Town and Country 
Planning (Environmental Impact Assessment) Regulations 2017.    
 

4.2 A positive Screening Opinion was issued on 15 May 2020, which confirmed that the 
proposals are EIA development.  An Environmental Statement (ES) has therefore 
been submitted with this planning application.  The specific environmental topics 
scoped into the ES include landscape and visual impact, and cultural heritage.  
Officers have taken the ES into account, including the further information submitted on 
26 October 2021, and representations made on it in determining the application.    

Page 10

http://www.southoxon.gov.uk/ccm/planning/ApplicationDetails.jsp?REF=P20/S2333/SCO
http://www.southoxon.gov.uk/ccm/planning/ApplicationDetails.jsp?REF=P20/S0847/PEJ


South Oxfordshire District Council – Planning Committee – 13 October 2021 

 
5.0 POLICY & GUIDANCE 
5.1 Development Plan 

In the case of South Oxfordshire, the Development Plan is the South Oxfordshire Local 
Plan 2035, which was adopted in December 2020 and any “made” Neighbourhood 
Plans within the relevant geographical area.  Pyrton has a made Neighbourhood 
Development Plan.    
 

5.2 South Oxfordshire Local Plan 2035 (SOLP) Policies: 
STRAT1  -  The Overall Strategy 
EMP10  -  Development in Rural Areas 
ENV1  -  Landscape and Countryside 
ENV2  -  Biodiversity - Designated sites, Priority Habitats and Species 
ENV3  -  Biodiversity 
ENV4  -  Watercourses 
ENV5  -  Green Infrastructure in New Developments 
ENV6  -  Historic Environment 
ENV7  -  Listed Buildings 
ENV9  -  Archaeology and Scheduled Monuments 
ENV11 – Pollution – Impact from Existing / Previous Land Uses 
DES1  -  Delivering High Quality Development 
DES2  -  Enhancing Local Character 
DES6  -  Residential Amenity 
DES7  -  Efficient Use of Resources 
DES9  -  Renewable Energy 
EP4  -  Flood Risk 
TRANS4  -  Transport Assessments, Transport Statements and Travel Plans 
TRANS5  -  Consideration of Development Proposals 
 

5.3 Neighbourhood Plan Policies  
Pyrton Neighbourhood Plan 2019 – 2034 (PNP)  
BNE1 – Historic Environment  
BNE2 – Landscape character  
BNE5 – Flood risk and drainage  
BNE6 – Footpaths and bridleways 
 

5.4 National Planning Policy Framework and Planning Practice Guidance 
 

5.5 Other Planning Guidance/Documents 
- National Policy Statement for Overarching Energy (EN-1)  
- National Policy Statement for Renewable Energy Infrastructure (EN-3)  
- National Policy Statement for Electricity Networks (EN-5) 
- UK Solar PV Strategy Part 1: Roadmap to a Brighter Future  
- UK Solar PV Strategy Part 2: Delivering a Brighter Future  
- Oxfordshire Energy Strategy 
- National Infrastructure Commission - Net Zero - Opportunities for the Power Sector 
- Oxfordshire County Council (OCC) Position Statement for Major Development 

Proposals for Ground-mounted Solar PV Arrays 
- BRE’s Planning Guidance for Large Scale Ground Mounted Solar PV Systems 
- The Solar Trade Association’s Solar Farm 10 Commitments  
 

5.6 Other Relevant Legislation 
 Human Rights Act 1998 

The provisions of the Human Rights Act 1998 have been taken into account in the 
processing of the application and the preparation of this report. 

Page 11



South Oxfordshire District Council – Planning Committee – 13 October 2021 

 
 Equality Act 2010 

In determining this planning application the Council has regard to its equalities 
obligations including its obligations under Section 149 of the Equality Act 2010. 

 
6.0 PLANNING CONSIDERATIONS 
6.1 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

The relevant planning considerations are: 
 

 Principle of the development 

 Loss of agricultural land  

 Landscape and visual impact  

 Cumulative impact  

 Ecology and trees  

 Archaeology and historic environment  

 Residential amenity 

 Access and parking 

 Environmental matters (flooding, drainage and contamination)  
 

 
6.2 

Principle of the development  
National planning policy on renewable energy development is set out in the National 
Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) and Planning Practice Guidance: Renewable and 
Low Carbon Energy (PPG).    
 

6.3 At para.152, the NPPF sets out its support for renewable energy development.  It states 
that “The planning system should support the transition to a low carbon future in a 
changing climate,… It should help to:….support renewable and low carbon energy and 
associated infrastructure.”   
 

6.4 The NPPF continues at para. 158, “When determining applications for renewable and 
low carbon development, local planning authorities should: 

a) not require applicants to demonstrate the overall need for renewable or low 
carbon energy, and recognise that even small-scale projects provide a valuable 
contribution to cutting greenhouse gas emissions; and 

b) approve the application if the impacts are (or can be made) acceptable.  Once 
suitable areas for renewable or low carbon energy have been identified in plans, 
local planning authorities should expect subsequent applications for commercial 
scale projects outside of these areas to demonstrate that the proposed location 
meets the criteria used in identifying suitable areas.”  
 

6.5 The PPG further explains that: “The National Planning Policy Framework explains that 
all communities have a responsibility to help increase the use and supply of green 
energy, but this does not mean that the need for renewable energy automatically 
overrides environmental protections and the planning concerns of local communities. 
As with other types of development, it is important that the planning concerns of local 
communities are properly heard in matters that directly affect them.” 
 

6.6 The PPG adds that “renewable energy developments should be acceptable for their 
location.” and that “The deployment of large-scale solar farms can have a negative 
impact on the rural environment, particularly in undulating landscapes. However, the 
visual impact of a well-planned and well-screened solar farm can be properly 
addressed within the landscape if planned sensitively. 
 

6.7 The PPG also provides a list of particular factors that a local planning authority will 
need to consider in determining applications for large scale solar farms.  These include: 

Page 12



South Oxfordshire District Council – Planning Committee – 13 October 2021 

 

 “encouraging the effective use of land by focussing large scale solar farms on 
previously developed and non agricultural land, provided that it is not of high 
environmental value; 

 where a proposal involves greenfield land, whether (i) the proposed use of any 
agricultural land has been shown to be necessary and poorer quality land has 
been used in preference to higher quality land; and (ii) the proposal allows for 
continued agricultural use where applicable and/or encourages biodiversity 
improvements around arrays. 

 that solar farms are normally temporary structures and planning conditions can 
be used to ensure that the installations are removed when no longer in use and 
the land is restored to its previous use; 

 the proposal’s visual impact, the effect on landscape of glint and glare and on 
neighbouring uses and aircraft safety; 

 the extent to which there may be additional impacts if solar arrays follow the 
daily movement of the sun; 

 the need for, and impact of, security measures such as lights and fencing; 

 great care should be taken to ensure heritage assets are conserved in a manner 
appropriate to their significance, including the impact of proposals on views 
important to their setting. As the significance of a heritage asset derives not only 
from its physical presence, but also from its setting, careful consideration should 
be given to the impact of large scale solar farms on such assets. Depending on 
their scale, design and prominence, a large scale solar farm within the setting of 
a heritage asset may cause substantial harm to the significance of the asset; 

 the potential to mitigate landscape and visual impacts through, for example, 
screening with native hedges; 

 the energy generating potential, which can vary for a number of reasons 
including, latitude and aspect.” 

 
6.8 In terms of local policy, the South Oxfordshire Local Plan 2035 (SOLP 2035) does not 

identify suitable areas or specific sites for renewable or low carbon energy projects.  
Pyrton Neighbourhood Plan also does not allocate any sites for this type of 
development. 
       

6.9 Policy DES9 of the SOLP 2035 is concerned with renewable and low carbon energy 
and states: “The council encourages schemes for renewable and low carbon energy 
generation and associated infrastructure at all scales including domestic schemes.  It 
also encourages the incorporation of renewable and low carbon energy applications 
within all development.  Planning applications for renewable and low carbon energy 
generation will be supported, provided that they do not cause a significant adverse 
effect to: 

i) landscape, both designated AONB and locally valued, biodiversity, including 
protected habitats and species and Conservation Target Areas;  

ii) the historic environment, both designated and non-designated assets, 
including development within their setting; 

iii) openness of the Green Belt; 
iv) the safe movement of traffic or pedestrians; or 
v) residential amenity.  

 
6.10 Subject to several environmental and amenity considerations, both national and local 

policies are supportive of proposals for renewable energy generation and in my opinion 

Page 13



South Oxfordshire District Council – Planning Committee – 13 October 2021 

the overall principle of the development is acceptable.  This is subject to there being no 
unacceptable impacts, which are considered in the relevant parts of the report below.   
 

 
6.11 

Loss of agricultural land  
As indicated by the PPG, Government policy is that large scale solar farms should be 
focused on previously developed and non-agricultural land.  However, as 
acknowledged by the OCC Position Statement for Major Development Proposals for 
Ground-mounted Solar PV Arrays “Oxfordshire is the most rural county in the South 
East; and applications may come forward on green field sites; these will need to be 
determined on a case by case basis.”    
 

6.12 The OCC Position Statement continues: “Where large scale solar PV farms are 
proposed on greenfield land, the developer should show that the use of agricultural 
land is necessary. Poorer quality land should be used in preference to higher quality 
land, and the Best and Most Versatile (BMV) agricultural land (grades 1, 2 and 3a) 
should be avoided. Where possible and viable, agricultural activity and other 
environmental/land management services should continue on the site.” 
 

6.13 Policy DES7 of the SOLP 2035 requires new development to make provision for the 
effective use and protection of natural resources through several means including, 
“avoiding the development of the best and most versatile agricultural land, unless it has 
been demonstrated to be the most sustainable choice from reasonable alternatives, by 
first using areas or poorer quality land in preference to that of a higher quality”  
 

6.14 The proposed solar farm is located on land that is classified as Grade 3b (moderate 
quality) agricultural land.  The Agricultural Land Classification system classifies land 
into five grades numbered 1 to 5, with grade 3 divided into two subgrades (3a and 3b).  
Land classified as 3b is capable of producing moderate yields of a narrow range of 
crops (mainly cereals and grass) or lower yields of a wider range of crops, or higher 
yields of grass (for grazing / harvesting).   
 

6.15 The proposal will not therefore result in the loss of BMV agricultural land.  The 
application documents also indicate that the agricultural land use of the site would be 
retained as the land can be grazed once the proposed development is in operation.    
 

6.16 It is noted that the applicant has submitted an Alternative Sites Assessment in support 
of their application.  This considers whether there are any suitable alternative sites 
located on previously developed land that could be utilised and whether there are any 
potential alternative sites located on lower grade agricultural land.  This assessment 
adds further weight to the need to locate the development on Grade 3b agricultural 
land.   
   

6.17 Furthermore, the agricultural land will not be lost permanently as the applicant has 
sought planning permission for a period of 40 years to cover the lifespan of the 
equipment.  A condition is recommended to require the removal of the panels and 
associated equipment at the end of this period, and this will include a requirement to 
reinstate the land to its previous condition.  Subject to the imposition of this condition, I 
consider that in this case, it is acceptable to locate the proposed solar farm on Grade 
3b agricultural land.   
 

 
6.18 

Landscape and visual impact  
Policy ENV1 of the SOLP 2035 is concerned with protecting South Oxfordshire’s 
landscape, countryside and rural areas against harmful developments.  It states that 
“Development will only be permitted where it protects and, where possible enhances, 
features that contribute to the nature and quality of South Oxfordshire’s landscapes”.    

Page 14



South Oxfordshire District Council – Planning Committee – 13 October 2021 

 
6.19 Policy BNE2 of the PNP has similar aims in terms of landscape protection and this 

policy states “every effort should be made to ensure that new development is in 
keeping with the local landscape character.”  And policy BNE6 requires developments 
to “respect and conserve the parish’s footpaths and bridleways, ensuring they do not 
harm their ambiance significantly, unless an appropriate alternative can be delivered.”  
 

6.20 The application site is not subject to any landscape designations.  The Chilterns AONB 
is around 5km to the southeast and the proposal would not affect the setting of the 
AONB or views out from the AONB.   
 

6.21 The site is relatively flat and comprises arable fields that are typical of the landscape 
character area and types in which the application site is located.  The site has a rural 
character and sense of isolation.  Existing perimeter vegetation provides a strong visual 
structure in the landscape with mature linear copses, hedgerows and hedgerow trees. 
 

6.22 The application is supported by a Landscape and Visual Impact Assessment (LVIA).  
The council’s landscape officer has confirmed that the methodology in this assessment 
is in line with technical guidance.    
 

6.23 The LVIA outlines the landscape mitigation that would be provided as part of the 
proposals including the restoration and reinstatement of historic hedgerows to reduce 
the existing large-scale arable field into smaller components.  There are no proposals to 
remove any trees or hedgerows as part of the proposed development.  
 

6.24 The LVIA acknowledges that there would be some intervisibility between the proposed 
development and the surrounding landscape. However, owing to the generally level 
topography of the site and the area immediately surrounding the site, intervisibility 
between the proposals and the wider landscape would generally be restricted to 
vantage points on more elevated ground at some distance from the site boundary and 
that the level of effect would not be significant.  
 

6.25 Owing to the scale of the fields in which the proposed solar farm is to be located, there 
would be only a limited perceived change to the pattern of the landscape. The site’s 
landscape and boundary features would be retained substantially unaltered. It is 
considered that except for the extension into the western field, the proposed 
development utilises the existing features of the landscape to sit comfortably into its 
setting.  
 

6.26 The proposal would have an adverse effect on the public right of way (PROW) passing 
through the site, but this would be largely limited to a short section of the overall route. 
The ‘corridor’ through which the PROW would pass, with the implementation of the two 
new hedgerows, is reasonably generous.  In the long term this definition of the linear 
corridor across the site would provide a different quality of landscape experience for 
walkers in that section but would not detract from the users’ overall enjoyment of the 
countryside.   
 

6.27 The proposed hedgerows also have the benefit of connecting existing, retained, 
vegetation blocks together. And the creation of a wildlife orientated buffer zone along 
the Haseley Brook is an enhancement in landscape terms.  This accords with Policy 
ENV4 of the SOLP 2035, which requires development adjacent to a watercourse to 
“protect and where possible, enhance the function of the watercourse and its 
biodiversity.” 
 

Page 15



South Oxfordshire District Council – Planning Committee – 13 October 2021 

6.28 The council’s landscape officer considers that the perceived change to the character of 
the wider landscape beyond the site boundary would, as the LVIA concludes, be limited 
and not significant.  Conditions are recommended to ensure that the landscaping is 
implemented, and property managed.  Subject to these conditions, the application 
complies with the above landscape policies. 
 

 
6.29 

Cumulative impact  
The ES submitted with the application includes an assessment of the cumulative effects 
of the proposed solar farm and other developments.  The cumulative impact 
assessment examines the potential cumulative effects of the proposal and a series of 
other proposed developments in the study area, on the existing landscape and visual 
baseline.  These developments include the proposed solar farm at Harlesford Farm 
(current application), together with the proposed new settlement at Harrington (for 
which an EIA Scoping Opinion has been submitted but the site is not allocated), the 
allocated mixed-use development at Chalgrove Airfield (SOLP STRAT7), residential 
development of 39 units in Tetsworth (which is now built), and a proposed equestrian 
fitness and rehabilitation centre (formerly an application, refused May 2021). 
 

6.30 The council’s landscape officer has commented that “the cumulative impact 
assessment is felt to be superficial and it is not clear as to how the scale of effects on 
the landscape and visual baseline is drawn? In particular, the cumulative visual 
assessment is weak and the evidence for the conclusions is limited. No new 
viewpoints/photomontages are provided, and no systematic cumulative assessment is 
made of the existing representative viewpoints. Overall, the cumulative assessment is 
felt not to assist the findings of the main LVIA.” 

 
6.31 Although lacking in some respects, the submitted assessment does review the 

cumulative impact of the proposed solar farm and the solar farm that is currently 
proposed at Harlesford Farm (P20/S3245/FUL), which at its closest point is around 
400m to the east of the application site.  This accepts that “The introduction of two solar 
farms into a rural area of Oxfordshire will change the rural pastoral/arable mixed 
character of the local area to a partial industrial scale power generation.” But it also 
acknowledges that, once established, the planting mitigation for both sites would re-
enforce landscape structure and reduce visibility to partial areas of the solar farms 
rather than the full extent of the proposals.    
 

6.32 In terms of landscape character, the assessment considers that the cumulative effect 
would not be significant adverse in the long term.  In terms of visual receptors, it adds 
that there are very few viewpoints where both solar farms would be visible because of 
the undulations in the landscape, the strong vegetation structure, and the proposed 
mitigation planting.   
 

6.33 Although not considered under the submitted assessment, I am satisfied that given the 
distance to the existing solar farm at Easington Farm, Chalgrove (2.8km) and the scale 
of this development, that there would be no cumulative impacts between this existing 
solar farm and the current proposal.   
 

 
6.34 

Ecology and trees  
The relevant SOLP 2035 policies in relation to ecology are ENV2 and ENV3.  Policy 
BEN2 of the PNP also refers to the conservation and enhancement of biodiversity.  
Amongst other things, these policies seek to protect legally protected species through 
measures that avoid, mitigate or compensate for the adverse effects resulting from a 
development.  They also seek to conserve, restore and enhance biodiversity and to 
provide new biodiversity features. 

Page 16



South Oxfordshire District Council – Planning Committee – 13 October 2021 

 
6.35 The predominant habitats on site are arable fields and field margins.  The majority of 

habitats of increased ecological value, such as linear habitats, will be retained as part 
of the proposals.  A significant buffer will also be retained between the development 
and Haseley Brook.   The ecological appraisal submitted with the application concludes 
that impacts on protected species are unlikely, using mitigation, and that the proposal 
will likely result in a net gain for biodiversity.   
 

6.36 Following the submission of some additional information on Great Crested Newts, the 
council’s countryside officer agrees with the conclusions of the ecological appraisal. As 
such, subject to conditions to secure a Construction Environmental Management Plan 
for Biodiversity and a Biodiversity Enhancement Plan, I am satisfied that the proposal 
complies with the above policies.     
 

6.37 In relation to trees, policy ENV2 of the SOLP 2035 also seeks to protect ancient 
woodland and veteran trees.  And policy ENV1 requires development to protect, and 
where possible enhance features that contribute to the nature and quality of South 
Oxfordshire’s landscapes, including trees, hedgerows and field boundaries.    
 

6.38 There are no trees on site that are subject to a Tree Preservation Order.  A fully mature 
oak tree within one of the hedgerows on site is likely to be of a veteran status and the 
woodland located adjacent to the south boundary (Cornwell Copse) is recorded as 
ancient woodland.   
 

6.39 The amended layout plan has increased the buffer to the veteran tree and an 
appropriate buffer will also be provided between the proposed development and 
Cornwell Copse.  The council’s forestry officer has no objection to the development.  As 
such, subject to a condition to secure appropriate tree protection during construction, I 
am satisfied that the proposal accords with the relevant policies.   
 

 
6.40 

Archaeology and historic environment  
Policy ENV9 of the SOLP 2035 advises that applicants will be expected to undertake 
an assessment of appropriate detail to determine whether the development site is 
known to, or is likely to, contain archaeological remains.  To comply with these 
requirements, the applicant has recently submitted the results of an on-going trial 
trench evaluation being conducted on the application site. 
   

6.41 The results of the trenched evaluation to date have identified the presence of below 
ground archaeological remains within the application site dating to the Iron Age and 
Romano-British periods.  These remains represent a continuation of settlement and 
occupation activity previously recorded on the site during works for the Aylesbury to 
Chalgrove gas pipeline.  
 

6.42 The County Council archaeologist has confirmed that these recorded archaeological 
remains are not considered to be of a significance that would preclude/constrain the 
proposed development.  However, the development will result in impacts upon the 
recorded archaeological features and as such they will require further investigation and 
record in advance of development.  Subject to suitable conditions to secure these 
investigations, I consider that the proposal is in accordance with the above policy.   
 

6.43 The council’s conservation officer has considered the impact on above ground heritage 
assets including the setting of listed buildings that are within the locality.  She does not 
consider that the significance of nearby designated heritage assets would be harmed 
by this proposal.  As such, the proposal accords with the relevant policies that seek to 

Page 17



South Oxfordshire District Council – Planning Committee – 13 October 2021 

conserve and enhance heritage assets including policies ENV6 and ENV7 of the SOLP 
2035, and policy BNE1 of the PNP.   
 

 
6.44 

Residential amenity 
Policy DES6 of the SOLP requires that development proposals demonstrate that they 
will not result in any adverse impacts on the amenity of neighbouring uses.  Most of the 
land surrounding the site is in agricultural use and the proposal would not result in any 
conflict with this use.  There are some residential buildings to the very south of the site 
and an objection has been received from Stoke Grange.   
   

6.45 This neighbour’s rear garden adjoins the application site boundary and there is a 
separation of some 80m between the actual dwelling at Stoke Grange and the 
application site boundary.  There is existing vegetation screening along this boundary. 
The application plans show the proposed solar arrays positioned some 50m from the 
site boundary.  Based on the Rochdale Envelope principles (referred to in the 
introduction) this is the closest that the solar panels would be to this neighbour, with the 
final details potentially positioning them further away.   
   

6.46 The landscaping proposals include additional planting to address specific areas of 
visual intrusion at Stoke Grange.  In my opinion, this mitigation and the level of 
separation between the proposed panels and Stoke Grange would ensure that the 
proposal would not result in any unacceptable impacts on the amenity of this 
neighbouring property.  As such, the proposal complies with the above policy.    
 

6.47 It is noted that the application is also accompanied by a glint and glare assessment.  
This concludes that the effects of glint and glare and their impacts on local receptors 
have been analysed in detail and the impacts are predicted to be “none” and as such, 
there would be “no significant effects.” 
 

 
6.48 

Access and parking 
Policy TRANS5 of the SOLP 2035 is the most relevant transport policy and, amongst 
other matters, this requires developments to provide a safe and convenient access.  
The site would be accessed via an existing farm access track to the south and no works 
are proposed to this existing access.  The County Council highways officer has 
reviewed the proposal and is satisfied that this access arrangement is suitable for the 
construction and operational phases of the development.       
 

6.49 Most vehicle trips associated with this development will take place during the 
construction phase, expected to take place over 16 weeks.  The County Council 
highways officer has considered the impact of these trips and has concluded that they 
would not result in development HGV traffic causing a severe impact to the local 
highway network.  The effective management of these trips during the limited 
construction phase can be achieved through a Construction Traffic Management Plan 
(CTMP), which is a recommended condition.   
 

6.50 During the operation of the development, the application documents identify that during 
normal circumstances, no more than four cars / vans would visit the site each week and 
only one HGV trip would occur per annum if a new or replacement item of equipment is 
bought to the site.  This number of trips generated when the development is operational 
will therefore be minimal and will have a negligible impact on the highway network.    
 

6.51 The County Council highways officer has not raised any concerns with the layout of the 
site.  The existing Public Right of Way that crosses the site will need to be protected 
during construction, with measures put in place to protect users of the footpath.  This 
can be included in the CTMP, along with details of wheel washing facilities.  Subject to 

Page 18



South Oxfordshire District Council – Planning Committee – 13 October 2021 

this condition, I am satisfied that the proposal complies with policy TRANS5 of the 
SOLP 2035.  
 

 
6.52 

Environmental matters (flooding, drainage and contamination)  
Policy EP4 of the SOLP 2035 considers flood risk and sets out drainage requirements 
for new developments.  Most of the site is within Flood Zone 1 which has the least 
probability of flooding.  There are areas at the north of the site around Haseley Brook 
that are within Flood Zones 2 and 3 and no development will be located within these 
areas.  The council’s drainage officer and the County Council as Lead Local Flood 
Authority have no objection to the proposal subject to a condition requiring details of a 
sustainable drainage scheme.   
 

6.53 Policy ENV11 of the SOLP 2035 is concerned with contamination.  The council’s 
contaminated land officer has reviewed the scheme and has not raised any concerns.   
Based on the recommendations of the council’s specialist officers’ I consider that the 
proposal is acceptable in terms of flood risk, drainage, and contamination.   
 

 
6.54 

Other material planning considerations 
The UK Government has committed to meeting a legally binding target of net-zero 
carbon emissions by 2050.  The council has also declared a climate emergency with a 
target to be a carbon neutral district by 2030.  The proposed solar farm will help to meet 
national and local objectives for reducing carbon emissions and reducing reliance on 
fossil fuels.   

 
7.0 CONCLUSION 
7.1 The development is EIA development for the purposes of the Town and Country 

Planning (Environmental Impact Assessment) Regulations 2017.  The council has 
taken into account the Environmental Statement submitted with the application and 
representations made on it in determining the application.    
 

7.2 The environmental and technical reports that form part of the planning application 
submission demonstrate that there would be no unacceptable environmental impacts, 
and there are no technical objections to the proposal.   
 

7.3 There are a number of factors to balance in determining this application.  In terms of 
negative aspects, the proposed solar farm would result in the loss of agricultural land 
and would have an impact on local landscape character and the visual amenity of the 
area.  In terms of positive impacts, it would generate renewable energy, contribute 
towards reducing carbon emissions, restore landscape structure, create habitat, and 
increase biodiversity.    
 

7.4 Having weighed up these factors, I am of the opinion the benefits of the proposed 
development outweigh the harm.  And when considered against the Development Plan 
as a whole, the proposal represents a sustainable form of development and there are 
no valid reasons to withhold planning permission.   

 
8.0 RECOMMENDATION 
8.1 That planning permission for P20/S3244/FUL is granted subject to the following 

conditions: 
 
Time limits and approved plans 

1. Commencement within three years  

2. Development in accordance with approved plans  

3. Temporary permission for a period of 40 years 

Page 19



South Oxfordshire District Council – Planning Committee – 13 October 2021 

  

Pre-commencement conditions 

4. Submission of final details of layout, design and scale of equipment to be 

submitted for approval  

5. Details of hard and soft landscaping to be submitted for approval  

6. Landscape and Ecological Management Plan to be submitted for approval 

7. Tree protection to be submitted for approval 

8. Construction Environmental Management Plan for Biodiversity to be 

submitted for approval 

9. Biodiversity Enhancement Plan to be submitted for approval 

10. Scheme for provision and management of buffer zone to watercourse to 

be submitted for approval 

11. Full archaeological field evaluation to be submitted for approval 

12. Archaeological Written Scheme of Investigation to be submitted for 

approval 

13. Programme of archaeological mitigation to be submitted for approval 

14. Construction Traffic Management Plan to be submitted for approval 

(including wheel washing facilities) 

15. Sustainable drainage scheme to be submitted for approval 

 

Compliance conditions 

16. Development to be carried out in accordance with Flood Risk Assessment 

17. No lighting to be installed 

18. Removal of panels if not used continuously for the production of energy 

for a period of six months 

 

End of development condition 

19. Decommissioning Method Statement to be submitted for approval and 

decommissioning to be carried out within 6 months of the expiry of the 40-

year planning permission and land returned to agricultural use 

 

 

 
Author:  Emma Bowerman 
Contact No: 01235 422600 
Email:  planning@southoxon.gov.uk 
 

Page 20



Page 21

Agenda Item 7

SAV_EMMBOW
Typewriter
Appendix A



3200

25
°

25
°

90
0

90
0

26
97

26
97

1052

1052

1052

1052

1052

1052

1052

1052

4253
4253

SS

Def

ETL

De
f

Def SS

1.22m
 R

H

Ward Bdy

SS

Def
Def

Def

SS

SS

Haseley Brook

Haseley Brook
Ward Bdy

Brook

Def

D
rain

Haseley Brook

Ward Bdy

Def

Def

Tk S

SS

Def

SS

SS

FB

ED B
dy

SS

Def

Def

SS

Ward Bdy

ED Bdy

Tk
 S

Haseley Brook

SS

Def

Tk S

W
ard Bdy

SSSS
Def

Drain

Ward Bdy

Def

Haseley Brook

Tk S

Ward Bdy

SS

1.22m
 R

H

Def

SS

Brook

Tk S

SS
SS

SS

ED B
dy

Def

Def

Haseley Brook

Def

W
ard Bdy

Def

Def

Def

SS

Haseley Brook

Ward Bdy
Haseley Brook

Def

1.22m
 RH

Ward Bdy

Tk
 S

Def

FB

D
ef

Ward Bdy

1.22m
 R

H

Def

1.22m
 R

H

Def

SS

Ward Bdy

Def

Def

FB

SS

Tk S

SS

Ward Bdy

Haseley Brook

Tk S

Ward Bdy

De
f

Def SS

Haseley Brook

Def

D
rain

CG

Def

SS

ED Bdy

SS

SS

Drain

Tr
ac

k
ED Bdy

SS
ED Bdy

ETL

HV ELE HV ELE HV ELE HV ELE HV ELE HV ELE HV ELE HV ELE HV ELE HV ELE HV ELE HV ELE HV ELE HV ELE HV ELE HV ELE HV ELE HV ELE HV ELE HV ELE HV ELE HV ELE HV ELE HV ELE HV ELE HV ELE HV ELE HV ELE HV ELE HV ELE HV ELE HV ELE HV ELE HV ELE HV ELE HV ELE HV ELE HV ELE HV ELE HV ELE HV ELE HV ELE HV ELE HV ELE HV ELE HV ELE HV ELE HV ELE HV

GA
S

GA
S

GA
S

GA
S

GA
S

GA
S

GA
S

GA
S

GA
S

GA
S

GA
S

GA
S

GA
S

GA
S

GA
S

GA
S

GA
S

GA
S

GA
S

GA
S

GA
S

GA
S

GA
S

GA
S

GA
S

GA
S

GA
S

GA
S

GA
S

GA
S

GA
S

GA
S

GA
S

GA
S

GA
S

GA
S

GA
S

GA
S

GA
S

GA
S

GA
S

GA
S

GA
S

GA
S

GA
S

GA
S

GA
S

GA
S

GA
S

GA
S

GA
S

GA
S

GA
S

GA
S

GA
S

GA
S

GA
S

GA
S

GA
S

GA
S

GA
S

GA
S

GA
S

GA
S

GA
S

GA
S

GA
S

GA
S

GA
S

GA
S

GA
S

GA
S

GA
S

GA
S

GA
S

GA
S

GA
S

GA
S

GA
S

GA
S

GA
S

GA
S

GA
S

GA
S

GA
S

GA
S

GA
S

GA
S

GA
S

GA
S

GA
S

GA
S

GA
S

GA
S

GA
S

GA
S

GA
S

GA
S

GA
S

GA
S

GA
S

GA
S

GA
S

GA
S

GA
S

GA
S

GA
S

GA
S

GA
S

GA
S

GA
S

GA
S

GA
S

GA
S

GA
S

GA
S

GA
S

GA
S

Revisions:
Inspected

LEGEND:

This drawing is the copyright of Low Carbon and must not be reproduced in whole or
in part or used in any manner without their written permission.

Scaled dimensions must not be taken from this drawing. All dimensions are to be confirmed on site prior to
commencement of work

A1

Revision Date Revision Notes Drawn

Drawing Number:

PLE-01

Drawn:
PL

Checked:

Revision:

LM 22.11.2020
First Issued:

Project Code:

LCS019-
Sheet Size: Scale:

A.NA1

Drawing Title:

13 Berkeley Street, London W1J 8DU
Tel: +44(0)207 4090700

enquiries@lowcarbon.com         www.lowcarbon.com

03

IL01 22.11.20 First Issue PL

Project:

Status:

FOR PLANNING

Cornwell Farm,
Oxford,

 OX44 7LE

EXISTING VEGETATION

DNO ACCESS

PERIMETER FENCELINE

CONSTRUCTION AND
MAINTENANCE  ACCESS

SERVICES:

DNO SUBSTATION

CUSTOMER
SWITCHGEAR

SECURITY GATE

CCTV CAMERA

VEGETATION:

EXISTING O/H CABLE ROUTEHV HVELEELE

SOLAR SITE INFRASTRUCTURE:

MEDIUM VOLTAGE
POWER STATION

PUBLIC FOOTPATH

FLOOD RISK AREA

ELEHV

METER KIOSK

DNO LV SUBSTATION

U/G GAS MAINS GASGAS GASGAS GASGASGAS GAS

PLANNING APPLICATION BOUNDARY

Indicative Site Layout Plan
External

Scale: 1:3000@A1
CORNWELL OVERALL SITE LAYOUT1

Scale: 1:50@A1
PV DETAIL3

DNO ACCESS

INTERNAL SITE ACCESS

Scale: 1:500@A1
SUBSTATION COMPOUND DETAIL2

Scale: 1:3000@A1
CORNWELL OVERALL SITE LAYOUT1

Scale: 1:50@A1
PV DETAIL3Scale: 1:500@A1

SUBSTATION COMPOUND DETAIL2

DNO ACCESS

INTERNAL SITE ACCESS 2

METER KIOSK

DNO 132kV SUBSTATION

132/33kV TRANSFORMER
COMPOUND

DNO LV
SUBSTATION

EXISTING TRACK

IL02 07.12.20 Updated to Suit Comments JF

SOLAR PANEL
MODULES
(PITCH = 7m)
(R.S = 3.4m)

IL03 18.08.21 Panels & Fence Updated JF

P
age 22

SAV_EMMBOW_1
Typewriter
Appendix B



P
age 23



P
age 24



P
age 25



P
age 26



P
age 27



P
age 28



P
age 29



P
age 30

SAV_EMMBOW_2
Typewriter
Appendix C



South Oxfordshire District Council – Planning Committee – 13 October 2021 

 

 
 APPLICATION NO. P21/S1388/FUL 
 APPLICATION TYPE FULL APPLICATION 
 REGISTERED 22.3.2021 
 PARISH CULHAM 
 WARD MEMBER(S) Sam Casey-Rerhaye 
 APPLICANT UKAEA 
 SITE Culham Science Centre, Clifton Hampden, OX14 

3DB 
 PROPOSAL Construction of two parking hubs (as amplified by 

drainage strategy received 1 July 2021, Written 
Scheme of Investigation and Archaeological 
Evaluation dated June 2021 and September 2021 
and amended by additional drainage information 
received 9 August 2021 and amplified by Ecological 
Information submitted on the 13 September 2021) 

 OFFICER Paul Bowers 
 

 
1.0 INTRODUCTION AND PROPOSAL 
1.1 This report sets out your officer’s recommendation that the application should be 

granted planning permission having regard to the relevant material planning 
considerations and the development plan.  
 

1.2 The application is referred to Planning Committee as views of the Culham Parish 
Council differ from your officer’s recommendation of approval.  
 

1.3 Culham Science Centre (CSC) is situated approximately 2.75 miles to the east of 
Abingdon, 4.5 miles north of Didcot and 5.5 miles south of Oxford.  
 
A plan identifying the site can be found at Appendix 1. 
 

1.4 The CSC now forms a key part of Science Vale and the Oxfordshire Knowledge Spine 
and is one of the largest employment centres in the County (covering approximately 
80 hectares). Employment levels at CSC have been stable and in excess of 2,000 for 
many years and, in recent years, with a growing community of commercial science 
and technology enterprises and the broadening of the UKAEA’s portfolio, have started 
to rise. 
 

1.5 The application site which is edged red on the plan in Appendix 1 and within the CSC 
boundary, comprises two areas referred to in the application as the eastern and 
western sites.  
 
The eastern site extends to some 0.77 hectares and is bounded by a tree belt and 
vegetation to the south, with a group of mature trees situated to the immediate west of 
the site that separates the site from a car park by the main entrance of CSC. 
 
The western site extends to some 1.04 hectares and is bounded by a linear tree belt 
to the west, with security fence beyond and perimeter access track which provides 
vehicular access to a secondary security gate on the western edge of the CSC. A 
secondary perimeter fence divides the access track from the adjacent Culham No.1 
site to the west. 
 

Page 31

Agenda Item 8

http://www.southoxon.gov.uk/ccm/planning/ApplicationDetails.jsp?REF=P21/S1388/FUL


South Oxfordshire District Council – Planning Committee – 13 October 2021 

1.6 The application seeks full planning permission to create two new parking hubs in the 
form of multi-storey car parks.  
 
It is proposed that both car parks will be built in phases.  
 
Phase 1 providing 154 car parking spaces and 8 motorbike spaces and Phase 2 
providing 294 additional car parking spaces for each hub.  
 
Once both hubs are complete the total number of spaces will 896. 
 

1.7 Phase 1 will consist of surface level parking only, but with the foundations designed 
and installed allowing the upper decked levels to be constructed at a later date as 
required for future developments in the CSC campus.  
 
The surface level car parking will provide parking for the STEP (Spherical Tokamak 
for Energy Production) and UKAEA offices, which is currently subject of a reserved 
matters application following the granting of an  extant outline planning permission 
(ref: P16/S1753/O). 
 

1.8 Phase 2 will comprise the construction of the additional decks (2 decks with 294. 
spaces in total on each parking hub) taking the total height of the car parks to 
approximately 9 metres. 
 

1.9 Reduced copies of the plans accompanying the application are attached as Appendix 
2 to this report. All the plans and representations can be viewed on the council’s 
website www.southoxon.gov.uk under the planning application reference number. 
 

 
2.0 SUMMARY OF CONSULTATIONS & REPRESENTATIONS 
2.1 Culham Parish Council – Object to the development on the following grounds; 

- The structures are large and high and will be visible from the road and around 
the area.  

- The structures will be visible from Wittenham Clumps and the AONB. 
- The development will generate congestion and greenhouse gases. 
- The development will encourage car usage.  

 
Clifton Hampden Parish Council (Adjoining parish) – No response received  
 
Countryside Officer – Some concerns about the calculations but accepts that this can 
be offset by an appropriately worded planning condition.  
 
Drainage – No objection.  
 
Forestry Officer – No objection subject to a landscaping condition.  
 
Oxfordshire County Council Single Response –  
Highways – No objection subject to conditions.  
Drainage – No objection subject to conditions 
Archaeologist – No objection based on the additional investigations that been 
undertaken.  
 

3.0 RELEVANT PLANNING HISTORY 
3.1 None.  

 
 

Page 32

http://www.southoxon.gov.uk/


South Oxfordshire District Council – Planning Committee – 13 October 2021 

4.0 ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT ASSESSMENT 
4.1 N/A 

 
5.0 POLICY & GUIDANCE 
5.1 Development Plan Policies 

 South Oxfordshire Local Plan 2035 (SOLP) Policies: 
DES1  -  Delivering High Quality Development 
DES10  -  Carbon Reduction 
DES2  -  Enhancing Local Character 
DES3  -  Design and Access Statements 
DES6  -  Residential Amenity 
DES7  -  Efficient Use of Resources 
ENV1  -  Landscape and Countryside 
ENV3  -  Biodiversity 
ENV4  -  Watercourses 
ENV6 – Historic environment 
ENV9 – Archaeology and scheduled monuments 
ENV12 – Pollution-impact of development on human health, the natural environment 
and/or local amenity 
EP4  -  Flood Risk 
INF4  -  Water Resources 
STRAT1  -  The Overall Strategy 
STRAT8  -  Culham Science Centre 
TRANS5  -  Consideration of Development Proposals 
 

5.2 Neighbourhood Plan 
 The Neighbourhood Plan area was formally designated on 18 September 2020. The 

Parish Council has started the process of gathering evidence and engaging with the 
local community. This is to give the plan a direction and draft policies that will form the 
neighbourhood plan in due course. At this stage the plan has no weight in the 
determination of planning applications.  
 

5.3 Supplementary Planning Guidance/Documents 
 South Oxfordshire Design Guide 2016 (SODG 2016) 

 Developer Contributions SPD  
 

5.4 National Planning Policy Framework and Planning Practice Guidance 
 

5.5 Other Relevant Legislation 
 Human Rights Act 1998 

The provisions of the Human Rights Act 1998 have been taken into account in the 
processing of the application and the preparation of this report. 

 Equality Act 2010 
In determining this planning application the Council has regard to its equalities 
obligations including its obligations under Section 149 of the Equality Act 2010. 

 
6.0 PLANNING CONSIDERATIONS 
6.1 Section 38 (6) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 requires 

applications for planning permission be determined in accordance with the 
Development Plan unless material considerations indicate otherwise.  
 
Section 70 (2) of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 provides that the local 
planning authority shall have regard to the provisions of the Development Plan, so far 
as material to the application, and to any other material considerations. 
 

Page 33



South Oxfordshire District Council – Planning Committee – 13 October 2021 

Development which is not in accordance with an up-to-date development plan should 
be refused unless material considerations indicate otherwise. 
 
In the case of this application South Oxfordshire Local Plan 2035 (SOLP) comprises the 
development plan and the policies within it must be assessed in relation to the material 
considerations relevant to this proposal. 
 

6.2 The main planning considerations to consider in relation to this development are as 
follows; 
 

- The principle of development. 
- Impact on the character of the area and the wider landscape. 
- Impact on highway safety and parking.  
- Impact on drainage.  
- Impact on archaeology.  
- Impact on ecology.  
- Carbon reduction.  

 
6.3 The principle of development. 

 
Policy STRAT8 of the South Oxfordshire Local Plan relates specially and wholly to 
Culham Science Centre.  
 
It states that proposals for the redevelopment and intensification of the Culham Science 
Centre will be supported where it does not have an unacceptable visual impact 
particularly on the character and appearance of the surrounding countryside and the 
registered parkland associated with Nuneham House.  
 
The policy goes on to say that site will deliver a net increase in employment land, a net 
gain in biodiversity and confirms that the site is now removed from the Oxford Green 
Belt.  
 

6.4 The policy demonstrates a clear and strong supportive position for CSC and for its 
redevelopment and intensification. It is directly relevant to this application which seeks 
to reorganise the parking provision on the site.  
 
As such I am satisfied that the development is acceptable in principle.  
 

6.5 Impact on the character of the area and the wider landscape. 
 
SOLP Policy ENV1 relates to landscape and countryside. The policy seeks to protect 
South Oxfordshire’s landscape, countryside and rural areas from harmful development 
and states that development will only be permitted where it protects and where possible 
enhances features that contribute to the nature and quality of South Oxfordshire’s 
landscape with particular emphasis on things like trees, habitats, landscapes, 
waterscapes, cultural heritage, topographical features, areas of cultural and historic 
value and important views. 
 
The policy goes on to states that development which supports economic growth in rural 
areas will be supported provided it conserves and enhances the landscape, countryside 
and rural areas.  
 

6.6 In considering this issue Policies DES1 and DES2 are also relevant in my view which 
seeks high quality development and enhancement of local character.  
 

Page 34



South Oxfordshire District Council – Planning Committee – 13 October 2021 

6.7 The Culham Parish Council have expressed concern that the position and height of the 
car park buildings will prominent and effect views from the AONB and Wittenham 
Clumps.  
 

6.8 The car parks are to be located at the southern end of the CSC site. The plan below 
shows CSC and the distance between it and Wittenham Clumps to the south east. 
 

 
 

6.9 The distance between the two is 2.5 miles. The hatched green area is the nearest 
extent of the North Wessex Downs Area of Outstanding Natural Beauty (AONB). 
 
The height of the two buildings at their highest point is 9 metres. This is comparable to 
the height of a typical two storey house. The design and materials used will help to 
minimise their prominence but also make for a visually interesting functional building.  
 

6.10 Whilst Wittenham Clumps is the most elevated position from which views might 
potentially be possible, the limited height of the structures, their position behind various 
amounts of natural screening both in short and long distances, together with the wider 
back drop of significantly larger buildings in the landscape, mitigates the limited visual 
impact that they will cause. 
 

6.11 Within the site and the immediate local context of the entrance to the CSC the proposal 
will require the removal of 6 trees and part of a group of trees, shown as T1, T2, T3, 
G4, T41, T42 and T43.  
 
The majority of these trees are either of poor quality or young trees so that their loss 
could be satisfactorily mitigated (T1, T2, T3, T41, T43). In relation to tree T42, this is a 

Page 35



South Oxfordshire District Council – Planning Committee – 13 October 2021 

mature beech tree that has been categorised in accordance with BS 5837 as having 
high arboricultural quality.  The trees in G4 have been categorised as having moderate 
arboricultural quality. Therefore, significant planting will therefore be required to mitigate 
the loss of these trees. The proposed planting shows a large amount of planting that is 
acceptable and will provide satisfactory mitigation for the proposed tree loss. A planning 
condition is proposed that seeks to protect the trees shown to be retained.  
 

6.12 Returning to Policy ENV1 it is the case that that this proposal supports economic 
growth by the virtue of the development serving an identified, strategically important site 
and that the development brings about enhanced planting. I am therefore satisfied that 
in the context of the wider landscape the impact will be acceptable and accord with 
policies ENV1, DES1 and DES2. 
 

6.13 Impact on highway safety and parking.  
 
With respect to highway safety matters the advice from Central Government set out in 
the National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) is as follows: 
 
Development should only be prevented or refused on transport grounds where the 
residual cumulative impacts of the development are severe.  
 
The term severe is locally interpreted as situations, which have a high impact, likely to 
result in loss of life, or a higher possibility of occurrence with a lower impact.  
 
Policy TRANS5 of SOLP seeks to ensure that development does not harm highway 
safety and provides for sufficient parking and turning areas.  
 

6.14  The two car parking hubs proposed are to be delivered in two phases.  
 
Phase 1 will provide surface level parking with Phase 2 adding additional decks at a 
later date to the build.  
 
Paragraph 5.7 of the Transport Statement (TS) and paragraph 7.7 of the submitted 
Planning Statement (PS), prepared by Carter Jonas, confirms that 308 car parking 
spaces are to be provided by Phase 1 of this proposal.  
 
Within both of these documents it is confirmed that the number of car parking spaces 
proposed are for permitted facilities at CSC alongside a re-design / better 
management of the car parking that currently takes place on site.  
 

6.15 The breakdown provided of the 308 spaces in summary is:  

 Permitted STEP / UKAEA office building (P16/S1753/O), which is subject to reserved 
application P21/S0509/RM, is to be provided with 213 spaces within the parking hubs 
and mainly use these facilities.  

 33 existing staff car parking spaces are to be relocated into the parking hubs from the 
Main Gate to CSC.  

 Space for approximately 45 on-street parking spaces along Main Street within CSC is 
to be removed with these car parking spaces being relocated into the proposed parking 
hubs.  

 A further 17 on-street parking spaces along a section of Farm Way within CSC are 
also to be relocated into the proposed parking hubs. 
 

6.16 It is confirmed in paragraph 7.11 of the PS that Phase 2 will accommodate the future 
parking requirements (294 spaces) of CSC in line with the emerging Movement 

Page 36



South Oxfordshire District Council – Planning Committee – 13 October 2021 

Strategy for the site. This strategy seeks to minimise on-site employee car parking 
movements by placing these facilities close to CSC’s main entrance. 
 

6.17 The proposed strategy, alongside the site wide Travel Plan for CSC, is to promote and 
encourage employees to use alternative travel modes to CSC. Such alternative travel 
modes include public transport, walking and cycling. In addition, the level of on-site car 
parking is to be consolidated and reduced where possible. 
 

6.18 It is made clear in the application that there will be no additional employees arising for 
the proposed car parking hubs and there will be no additional commuter traffic 
movements on the network arising from this development proposal. 
 

6.19 On the basis the proposed car parking hubs are located within CSC, are being provided 
to accommodate and manage existing on-site car parking provision and are not 
expected to generate any new peak hour traffic movements, the Highway Authority and 
your officers are satisfied that, in conjunction with conditions relating to a construction 
traffic management plan, this proposal is acceptable in highway safety and traffic 
generation / impact terms and accords with Policy TRANS5 of SOLP. 
 

6.20 Impact on drainage.  
 
Policy INF4 states that all development proposals must demonstrate that there is or will 
be adequate water supply, surface water, foul drainage and sewerage treatment 
capacity to serve the whole development. 
 

6.21 The two sites are located in Flood Zone one – the lowest level of classification. The 
Oxfordshire County Council as lead flood authority requested additional information 
during the course of the application. This includes investigations, testing and ground 
investigations.  
 

6.22 The County Drainage Engineers have considered this in detail and do not object to the 
development subject to a detailed planning condition that requires a drainage scheme 
to be submitted prior to the commencement of development and based on the flood risk 
and drainage statement the applicants have submitted in support of their application.  
 
In conjunction with the condition the development will comply with Policy INF4 of SOLP. 
 

6.23 Impact on archaeology.  
 
Policy ENV9 of SOLP relates specifically to archaeology. It states that development 
must protect the site and setting of Scheduled Monuments or nationally important 
designated or undesignated archaeological remains. 
 
Applicants will be expected to undertake an assessment of appropriate detail to 
determine whether the development site is known to, or is likely to, contain 
archaeological remains. Proposals must show the development proposals have had 
regard to any such remains. 
 
Where the assessment indicates archaeological remains on site, and development 
could disturb or adversely affect archaeological remains and/or their setting, applicants 
will be expected to: 
i) submit an appropriate archaeological desk-based assessment; or 
ii) undertake a field evaluation (conducted by a suitably qualified 
archaeological organisation), where necessary. 
 

Page 37



South Oxfordshire District Council – Planning Committee – 13 October 2021 

6.24 The site is located in an area of considerable archaeological interest of Prehistoric and 
Roman settlement identified from cropmarks and geophysical survey. A dense area of 
cropmarks has been recorded from aerial photographs as part of the National Mapping 
Programme immediately south of the proposed site and extending into this application 
area. Although these are undated, they are likely to relate to an area of Prehistoric or 
Roman settlement based on their form. Other settlement sites have been recorded and 
plotted as part of this mapping programme in the immediate vicinity of the site.  
 
A recent geophysical survey has identified a further settlement site 400m west of the 
proposed development. This is also undated but is likely to be Roman in date. An area 
of probable settlement has also been recorded from cropmarks to the north west of this 
proposed site. The geophysical survey adjacent to the airfield has demonstrated that 
this settlement site continues into the north-west corner of the former airfield. A 
considerable number of other archaeological sites have been recorded in the 
immediate vicinity of this proposed site. 
 

6.25 Oxfordshire County Council’s Archaeologist requested additional investigations to those 
already undertaken and reported in the application as originally submitted.  The 
additional information submitted during the course of the application confirms that all 
trenches dug within the planning application area were archaeologically sterile. The 
report summarises that evidence of remodelling of the landscape, likely to be 
associated with the former use of the site as an airfield, was recorded, which may have 
resulted in archaeological remains being truncated and destroyed. 
 

6.26 The County Archaeologist has confirmed that the evaluation has shown that no 
significant archaeological remains survive on this site. There are therefore no 
archaeological constraints to this proposal and consequently I am satisfied that the 
development accords with Policy ENV9 of SOLP.  
 

6.27 Impact on ecology.  
 
Policy ENV3 of SOLP relates to biodiversity. The policy seeks to ensure that 
development will conserve, restore and enhance biodiversity and that development 
would provide a net gain in biodiversity where possible. The policy also requires 
applications to be supported by evidence to demonstrate a biodiversity net gain.  
 

6.28 The Council’s Ecologist has considered the details information that has been submitted 
in support of the application. They have some concerns about the way in which the 
biodiversity metric assessment has been undertaken and concludes that the 
development results in a 0.65 units loss. This would be in conflict with Policy ENV3.  
 

6.29 
 

However, Policy ENV3 does allow for development proposals which would result in a 
net loss of biodiversity where harm cannot be prevented or adequately mitigated, 
appropriate compensation measures to be sought, as a last resort, through planning 
conditions to offset the loss by contributing to appropriate biodiversity projects to 
achieve an overall net gain for biodiversity. 
 

6.30 The Council’s Ecologist has confirmed that they are happy to accept that approach in 
this case. Consequently, there is a condition proposed as part of the recommendation 
that ensures that before development cannot commence until confirmation in the form 
of a certificate confirming the agreement of an Offsetting Provider to deliver a 
Biodiversity Offsetting Scheme totalling a minimum of 0.65 biodiversity units has been 
submitted and approved by the Council. 
 

Page 38



South Oxfordshire District Council – Planning Committee – 13 October 2021 

In addition to ensure full compliance with Policy ENV3 conditions are also proposed 
that ensure that a Biodiversity Enhancement and Management Plan (BEMP) shall be 
submitted and approved in writing and in accordance with the details stated in the 
supporting Biodiversity Impact Assessment submitted with the application and details of 
external lighting.  
 

6.31 Carbon reduction.  
 
Policy DES10 requires that non-residential development to meet BREEAM excellent 
standard and if the proposal was in excess of 1000 square metres achieve at least 
a 40% reduction in carbon emissions compared with a code 2013 Building Regulations 
compliant base and that this reduction is to be secured through renewable energy and 
other low carbon technologies.  
 

6.32 Policy TRANS5 also requires that development will provide facilities to support the take 
up of electric and/or low emission vehicles.  
 

6.33 In relation to Policy DES10, the BREEAM Excellent standard is a high bar to achieve in 
relation to some development types. The Council has to consider each development on 
its own merits and whilst some buildings can achieve this standard, this has to be 
applied pragmatically and practically. This proposal is for two car park buildings which 
will not be insulated or heated buildings or occupied by people. They are open 
structures which do not require mechanical ventilation.  
 

6.34 It would not be possible to practically achieve the standard required by the policy. 
Having regard to its functional design, the wider benefits of consolidated parking at the 
entrance to the Science Centre and weighing in the balance the strong support in the 
strategic policy for development on this site, I am of the view that, in this instance, there 
is justification for departing from the specific requirement of the policy in relation to 
BREEAM. 
 

6.35 Policy TRANS5 does not specify a specific number or formula for the provision of the 
number electrical charging points in a development. The floor plans of the two car parks 
clearly indicate which spaces are for vehicle charging and they number 45 and are 
located at ground floor level.   
 

6.36 There is clear scope to increase the number of points as and when demand dictates it. 
However, as a minimum for a development of this size and in order to demonstrate 
compliance with this particular aspect of Policy TRANS 5 a condition is proposed that 
secures the number of points shown on the plans. 
 

7.0 CONCLUSION 
7.1 This development provides two car parking hubs at the entrance to the site. It 

consolidates existing parking and accommodates parking allowed for in consented 
schemes.  
 
Although 9 metres in height the impact of the buildings in wider views from sensitive 
receptors will be limited due to their position behind existing trees along the boundary 
of the secure fenced perimeter of the Science Centre. 
 
The development supports the wider activities and intensification of the Culham 
Science Centre and, in conjunction with the attached conditions, the proposal accords 
with the development plan.  

 
 

Page 39



South Oxfordshire District Council – Planning Committee – 13 October 2021 

 
8.0 RECOMMENDATION 
8.1 That Planning Permission is granted subject to the following conditions;  
 
 

 
Standard conditions - 
1 : Commencement three years - Full Planning Permission 
2 : Approved plans  
 
Prior to commencement conditions -  
3: Construction Traffic Management  
4 : Tree protection  
5 : Surface water drainage details to be approved. 
6: Biodiversity enhancement management plan to be approved. 
7: Certificate confirming the agreement of an offsetting provider 
 
Prior to occupation conditions –  
8: Electrical charging points as per plans 
9: External lighting scheme 
 
Compliance conditions -  
10: Materials as on plan 
11: Wildlife protection as approved.  
 

 

Author:           Mr. P Bowers 

E-mail:            planning@southoxon.gov.uk 

Contact No:    01235 422600 

   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 40

mailto:planning@southoxon.gov.uk


J41 X STOREY BUILDING

TL

Earth Mat

Earth Mat

Earth Mat

Mat
Earth

Earth Mat

Earth Mats

Earth Mat

Earth Mat

Earth Mat

Earth Mat

NFI

NFI

NFI

NFI

NFI

NFI NFI NFI

NFI

d0.7 d1.2

d
1
.2

d
0
.7

d
0
.7

d
1
. 2

d0.7

d
0
.7

NFI

(NFI)

(NFI) (NFI)

o/h

150 (aban)

300
 (ab

an)

150 (aban.)

150 (aban.)

2x150 (aban.)

10
0

100 (aban.)

15
0/
10
0 
(a
ba
n.
)

150 (aban.)

22
5 
(a
ba
n.
)

225 (aban)

(a
b
a
n
)

Walkwa y

SV SV

V

V

V

G

G

Chamber

Chamber

63Pe Medium Pressure

(R
)

(R
)

1
2
5
P
e
 
(R
) 
 
M
e
d
iu
m
 P
r e
s
s
u
re

100 Medium Pressu re

5
0
P
e  
(R
)

d1.3

1
8
0
P
e
 
M
ed
iu
m
 
P
re
ss
u
re

180Pe Med ium Pressu re

SP

SP

SP

(R
) 
(N
F
I)

S
e
rvic

e
1
5
0
 
V
e
n
t

50 WHD

50

5
0

2
 x
 
A
ss
um
e
d 
re
d
  
d
0.
6
?

4
 P
ip
es

2
 x
 
A
s s
um
e
d 
re
d 
 
d
0.
7

d
0
.8
?

2
 x
 
as
su
m
ed
 
re
d.
d
0
.3
?

(NFI)

(dis)
TP

TP

TP

TP

TP (Disused)

TP (cut)

TP (cut)

TP (cut)

TP (cut)

TP (cut)

TP (cut)

TP (cut)

TP (cut)

TP (cut)

TP (cut)

TP (cut)
TP (cut)

TP (cut)

TP (cut)

TP (cut)

TP (cut)

DrC

DrC

DrC

DrC

D
rC

D
rC

D
rC

DrC

DrC

DrC

DrC

DrC

DrC

DrC

DrC

DrC

DrC

D
rC

DrC

DrC

D
rC

DrC

DrC

DrCDrC

DrC

DrC

DrC

DrC DrC

D
rC

DrC

DrC

DrC

DrC

DrC

DrC

DrC

D
r a
in
 
Tr
e
nc
h

D
rC

DrC

DrC

DrC

SP

WM

Meter
WB1101

WM

WM
s

Meter
WB0302

WMs
CL 57.84
PL 56.645-56.809

WM

WM

WM

WM

WM

WM

WM

Pylon

Pylon

Pylon

Pylon

019B

S020

Conta iner Park

R
O

A
D

 1
8

ABINGDON ROAD A415

M
A
IN
 
A
V
E
N
U
E

FAR
M W

AY

CAR PARK

FAR
M W

AY

CAR PARK A

CAR PARK B

R
O
A
D
 
1

CAR PARK C

ROAD 3

R
O
A
D
 
2

FAR
M W

AY

CAR PARK D

CAR PARK G

ROAD 8

R
O
A
D
 
11

CAR PARK 8

VISITORS
CAR PARK

CAR PARK 6

M
A
IN
 
A
V
EN
U
E CAR PARK 7

CAR PARK

CAR PARK B

CAR PARK 9

FAR
M W

AY

CAR PARK 10

ROAD 7

M
ID
D
LE
 
W
A
Y

R
O
A
D
 
9

R
O
A
D
 
11

R
O
A
D
 
14

R
O
A
D
 
15

R
O
A
D
 
16

R
O
A
D
 
17

ROAD 4

CAR PARK
G

ROAD 10

ROAD 12

CAR PARK 3

M
A
IN
 
A
V
EN
U
E ROA

D 4

R
O
A
D

 12

HIGH WAY

CAR PARK 2

M
ID

D
L

E
 W

A
Y

CAR PARK 14

CAR PARK 5

CAR PARK 4

M
A
IN
 
A
V
EN
U
E

CAR PARK 1

M
A
IN
 
A
V
E
N
U
E

M
A
IN
 
A
V
EN
U
E

ROAD 6

CAR

PARK V

CAR PARK 11

12

THE CUT

R
O
A
D
 5

R
O
A
D
 P

RO
AD

 P

ROAD L

NORTH ROAD

RO
AD
 A

ROAD N

ROAD O

ROAD M

ROAD B

ROAD C

ROAD D

ROAD E

ROAD Q

ROAD R

ROAD F
ROAD S

R
O
A
D
 
G

ROAD H

ROAD T

ROAD W

R
O
A
D
 
V

ROAD J

ROAD X

R
O
A
D
 
Y

ROA
D K

R
O
A
D
 
Z

NORTH ROAD

NORTH ROAD

PER
IME

TER
 TR

AC
K

PER
IMET

ER 
TRA

CK

ROAD U

ROAD D

R
O
A
D
 
Y

R
O
A
D
 
R

R
O
A
D
 
2
0

R
O
A
D
 
19

B
U
S

S
TO
P

ROAD 13 ROAD 13

CAR PARK 13

CAR PARK

CAR PARK

CAR PARK C

R
O
A
D
 C

ROAD C

R
O
A
D
 
C

X STO REY

 SHED

GRASSED

AREA

N

Site Boundary

Ownership Boundary

BIM Transmittal Disclaimer

McBains Ltd makes no express or implied warranties with respect to the 

character, function, or capabilities of the data (inclusive of 3rd party data 

incorporated within), or the suitability of the data for any particular 

purpose beyond those originally intended by McBains Ltd. please refer to our

standard terms and conditions for further details.

Client

Project

Drawing Title

MCB Number Date Created Scale @ A1

SuitabilityProject Iden Originator Zone Level Type Discipline Number

- MCB

Revision

5th Fl, 26 Finsbury Square London EC2A 1DS

+44 (0)20 7786 7900 mcbains.co.uk

McBains Ltd

Drawn by Reviewed by Approved by

Drawing / Document Reference Status

- - - - - -

1 : 2500 @ A1

P5

KC LF

UKAEA

CAR PARKING HUBS

60636R

SITE LOCATION PLAN

FOR PLANNING

ARCHITECTURE
UKA13 SI ZZ DR A

DEC 2020

S40100

AK

1 : 2500

SITE LOCATION PLAN
1

Revision Amendment Date

P1 Draft issue 16-12-20

P2 Issue for review and comments 13-01-21

P3 Issue for review and comments 03-02-21

P4 Issue for Stage Approval 10-02-21

P5 Issue for Stage Approval 18-02-21

0

SCALE 1:

1008060402020

m2500
N

Appendix 1

P
age 41

A
genda Item

 8
P

21/S
1388/FU

L



Earth Mat

150 (aban)

V

Chamber

Chamber

63Pe Medium Pressure

(R
)

( R
)

1
2
5
P
e
 
( R
) 
 
M
e
d
iu
m
 
P
r e
s
s
u
re

100 Medium Pressure

5
0
P
e
 
(R
)

d1.3

1
8
0
P
e
 
M
e
d
iu
m
 
P
re
s
s
u
re

180Pe Medium Pressure

WM

WM

WM

ABINGDON ROAD A415

M
A
IN
 
A
V
E
N
U
E

FAR
M W

AY

CAR PARK

CAR PARK A

CAR PARK B

R
O
A
D
 
1

CAR PARK C

ROAD 3

CAR PARK 8

CAR PARK 6

M
A
IN
 
A
V
E
N
U
E CAR PARK 7

CAR PARK

CAR PARK B

CAR PARK 9

FAR
M W

AY

CAR PARK 10

ROAD 7

CAR

PARK V

12

R
O
A
D
 
G

ROAD H

ROAD T

ROAD W

R
O
A
D
 
V

ROAD J

ROAD X

R
O
A
D
 
Y

ROA
D K

PER
IME

TER
 TR

AC
K

R
O
A
D
 
Y

B
U
S

S
T
O
P

CAR PARK 13

CAR PARK

CAR PARK

CAR PARK C

Site Boundary

Ownership Boundary

BIM Transmittal Disclaimer

McBains Ltd makes no express or implied warranties with respect to the 

character, function, or capabilities of the data (inclusive of 3rd party data 

incorporated within), or the suitability of the data for any particular 

purpose beyond those originally intended by McBains Ltd. please refer to our

standard terms and conditions for further details.

Client

Project

Drawing Title

MCB Number Date Created Scale @ A1

SuitabilityProject Iden Originator Zone Level Type Discipline Number

- MCB

Revision

5th Fl, 26 Finsbury Square London EC2A 1DS

+44 (0)20 7786 7900 mcbains.co.uk

McBains Ltd

Drawn by Reviewed by Approved by

Drawing / Document Reference Status

- - - - - -

1 : 1000 @ A1

P5

LF AK

UKAEA

CAR PARKING HUBS

60636R

SITE BLOCK PLAN

FOR PLANNING

ARCHITECTURE
UKA13 SI ZZ DR A

JAN 2021

S40101

MB

Revision Amendment Date

P1 Issue for review and comments 13-01-21

P2 Issue for review and comments 26-01-21

P3 Issue for review and comments 03-02-21

P4 Issue for Stage Approval 10-02-21

P5 Issue for Stage Approval 18-02-21

0

SCALE 1:

504030201010

m1000
N

1 : 1000

SITE BLOCK PLAN
1

Appendix 2

P
age 42



DrC

Trees to be removed

Proposed 2000mm pathway

Proposed 2 way road

Proposed 2000mm pathway

Existing Pathway

Proposed road crossing

Existing trees

Root Protection Zone

Car access/exitPedestrian 

access/exit

Pedestrian 

access/exit

Pedestrian 

access/exit

P
ro

p
o
se

d
 2

0
0
0
m

m
 p

a
th

w
a
y

Site Boundary

NOTE: Tree survey shown in context for information. 

Refer to original survey information for full details.

Ownership Boundary

BIM Transmittal Disclaimer

McBains Ltd makes no express or implied warranties with respect to the 

character, function, or capabilities of the data (inclusive of 3rd party data 

incorporated within), or the suitability of the data for any particular 

purpose beyond those originally intended by McBains Ltd. please refer to our

standard terms and conditions for further details.

Client

Project

Drawing Title

MCB Number Date Created Scale @ A1

SuitabilityProject Iden Originator Zone Level Type Discipline Number

- MCB

Revision

5th Fl, 26 Finsbury Square London EC2A 1DS

+44 (0)20 7786 7900 mcbains.co.uk

McBains Ltd

Drawn by Reviewed by Approved by

Drawing / Document Reference Status

- - - - - -

1 : 250 @ A1

P6

KC LF

UKAEA

CAR PARKING HUBS

60636R

PARKING HUB 1

PROPOSED SITE PLAN

FOR PLANNING

ARCHITECTURE
UKA13 SI ZZ DR A

DEC 2020

S40105

AK

Revision Amendment Date

P1 Draft issue 05-01-21

P2 Issue for review and comments 13-01-21

P3 Issue for Stage Approval 29-01-21

P4 Issue for review and comments 03-02-21

P5 Issue for Stage Approval 10-02-21

P6 Issue for Stage Approval 18-02-21

1 : 250

PARKING HUB 1 PROPOSED SITE PLAN
1

0

SCALE 1:

1086422

m250
NP

age 43



1
0

0
 u

P
V

C

C
a
r a

cce
ss/

e
x
it

P
e
d
e
stria

n
 

a
c
ce

ss/
e
x
it

Pedestria
n 

access/exit

Pedestria
n 

access/exit

Trees to be removedRoot Protection ZoneExisting trees

P
ro

p
o
se

d
 2

0
0
0
m

m
 p

a
th

w
a
y

P
ro

p
o
se

d
 2

 w
a
y ro

a
d

Underground services

E
xisting P

a
thw

ay

Trees to be removed

Site Boundary

NOTE: Tree survey shown in context for information. 

Refer to original survey information for full details.

Ownership Boundary

BIM Transmittal Disclaimer

McBains Ltd makes no express or implied warranties with respect to the 

character, function, or capabilities of the data (inclusive of 3rd party data 

incorporated within), or the suitability of the data for any particular 

purpose beyond those originally intended by McBains Ltd. please refer to our

standard terms and conditions for further details.

Client

Project

Drawing Title

MCB Number Date Created Scale @ A1

SuitabilityProject Iden Originator Zone Level Type Discipline Number

- MCB

Revision

5th Fl, 26 Finsbury Square London EC2A 1DS

+44 (0)20 7786 7900 mcbains.co.uk

McBains Ltd

Drawn by Reviewed by Approved by

Drawing / Document Reference Status

- - - - - -

1 : 250 @ A1

P3

LF AK

UKAEA

CAR PARKING HUBS

60636R

PARKING HUB 2

PROPOSED SITE PLAN

FOR PLANNING

ARCHITECTURE
UKA13 SI ZZ DR A

JAN 2021

S40107

MB

Revision Amendment Date

P1 Issue for review and comments 03-02-21

P2 Issue for Stage Approval 10-02-21

P3 Issue for Stage Approval 18-02-21

1 : 250

PARKING HUB 2 PROPOSED SITE PLAN
1

0

SCALE 1:

1086422

m250
NP

age 44



UP

P-P1-ZZ-0130

P-P1-ZZ-0130

P-P1-ZZ-0130

P-P1-ZZ-0130 2

3

4

1

A B C D E F

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

7
5
00

7
5
00

7
5
00

7
5
00

7
5
00

7
5
00

7
5
00

4
0
00

8000 16000 16000 16000 16000

9

1
P-P1-ZZ-0120

5000 6000 5000

2
P-P1-ZZ-0120

1200 3600 1200

6
5
00

5
0
00

1
2
00

4
1
00

1
2
00

1
0
00

22 m²

Elec. Intake Rm.

1
9
50

5
0
0

Standard parking bay

Car sharing group bay

Electric vehicle charging bay

Minimum car bay dimension is 2.5m x 5m

Motorbike bay dimension is 0.9m x 2.3m

P1 P2

P1 P2

BIM Transmittal Disclaimer

McBains Ltd makes no express or implied warranties with respect to the 

character, function, or capabilities of the data (inclusive of 3rd party data 

incorporated within), or the suitability of the data for any particular 

purpose beyond those originally intended by McBains Ltd. please refer to our

standard terms and conditions for further details.

Client

Project

Drawing Title

MCB Number Date Created Scale @ A1

SuitabilityProject Iden Originator Zone Level Type Discipline Number

- MCB

Revision

5th Fl, 26 Finsbury Square London EC2A 1DS

+44 (0)20 7786 7900 mcbains.co.uk

McBains Ltd

Drawn by Reviewed by Approved by

Drawing / Document Reference Status

- - - - - -

1 : 200 @ A1

P6

KC LF

UKAEA

CAR PARKING HUBS

60636R

PARKING HUB 1

GROUND FLOOR GENERAL ARRANGEMENT

FOR PLANNING

ARCHITECTURE
UKA13 P1 00 DR A

DEC 2020

S40110

AK

1 : 200

GROUND FLOOR GENERAL ARRANGEMENT
1

Revision Amendment Date

P1 Draft issue 16-12-20

P2 Draft issue 05-01-21

P3 Issue for review and comments 13-01-21

P4 Issue for review and comments 03-02-21

P5 Issue for Stage Approval 10-02-21

P6 Issue for Stage Approval 18-02-21

0

SCALE 1:

1086422

m200
N

Parking Hub 1

A-P1-Level 00-FFL

Car Bays

Car Sharing Group - Phase 1 8

Car Sharing Group - Phase 2 17

EV - Phase 1 13

EV - Phase 2 32

Standard 79

149

A-P1-Level 01-FFL

Car Bays

Standard 148

148

A-P1-Level 02-FFL

Car Bays

Standard 151

151

Total Car Bays 448

A-P1-Level 00-FFL

Motorbike Bays

Standard 8

Total Parking Spaces 8

P
age 45



UP

C
a
r 

a
c
c
e
ss

/
e
x
it

P
e
d
e
st

ri
a
n
 

a
c
c
e
s s

/
e
x
it

Pedestrian 

access/exit
Pedestrian 

access/exit

P
ro

p
o
se

d
 2

0
0
0
m

m
 p

a
th

w
a
y

P
ro

p
o
se

d
 2

 w
a
y
 r

o
a
d

Underground services

A

B

C

D

E

F

123456789

22 m²

Elec. Intake Rm.

1
P-P2-ZZ-0120

2
P-P2-ZZ-0120

P-P2-ZZ-01304
P-P2-ZZ-0130 2

P-P2-ZZ-0130

1

P-P2-ZZ-0130

3

6500

5000120041001200
5
0
00

6
0
00

5
0
00

1
2
00

3
6
00

1
2
00

8
0
00

1
6
00

0
1
6
00

0
1
6
00

0
1
6
00

0

40007500750075007500750075007500

Standard parking bay

Car sharing group bay

Electric vehicle charging bay

Minimum car bay dimension is 2.5m x 5m

Motorbike bay dimension is 0.9m x 2.3m

P1 P2

P1 P2

BIM Transmittal Disclaimer

McBains Ltd makes no express or implied warranties with respect to the 

character, function, or capabilities of the data (inclusive of 3rd party data 

incorporated within), or the suitability of the data for any particular 

purpose beyond those originally intended by McBains Ltd. please refer to our

standard terms and conditions for further details.

Client

Project

Drawing Title

MCB Number Date Created Scale @ A1

SuitabilityProject Iden Originator Zone Level Type Discipline Number

- MCB

Revision

5th Fl, 26 Finsbury Square London EC2A 1DS

+44 (0)20 7786 7900 mcbains.co.uk

McBains Ltd

Drawn by Reviewed by Approved by

Drawing / Document Reference Status

- - - - - -

1 : 200 @ A1

P2

LF AK

UKAEA

CAR PARKING HUBS

60636R

PARKING HUB 2

GROUND FLOOR GENERAL ARRANGEMENT

FOR PLANNING

ARCHITECTURE
UKA13 P2 00 DR A

FEB 2021

S40110

MB

Revision Amendment Date

P1 Issue for Stage Approval 10-02-21

P2 Issue for Stage Approval 18-02-21

0

SCALE 1:

1086422

m200N

1 : 200

GROUND FLOOR GENERAL ARRANGEMENT
1

Parking Hub 2

A-P1-Level 00-FFL

Car Bays

Car Sharing Group - Phase 1 8

Car Sharing Group - Phase 2 17

EV - Phase 1 13

EV - Phase 2 32

Standard 79

149

A-P1-Level 01-FFL

Car Bays

Standard 148

148

A-P1-Level 02-FFL

Car Bays

Standard 151

151

Total Car Bays 448

A-P1-Level 00-FFL

Motorbike Bays

Standard 8

Total Parking Spaces 8

P
age 46



UP

P-P1-ZZ-0130

P-P1-ZZ-0130

P-P1-ZZ-0130

P-P1-ZZ-0130 2

3

4

1

A B C D E F

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

8000 16000 16000 16000 16000

7
5
00

7
5
00

7
5
00

7
5
00

7
5
00

7
5
00

7
5
00

4
0
00

1
P-P1-ZZ-0120

2
P-P1-ZZ-0120

1200 3600 1200

6
5
00

5
0
00

1
2
00

4
1
00

1
2
00

1
0
00

5000 6000 5000

Standard parking bay

Car sharing group bay

Electric vehicle charging bay

Minimum car bay dimension is 2.5m x 5m

Motorbike bay dimension is 0.9m x 2.3m

P1 P2

P1 P2

BIM Transmittal Disclaimer

McBains Ltd makes no express or implied warranties with respect to the 

character, function, or capabilities of the data (inclusive of 3rd party data 

incorporated within), or the suitability of the data for any particular 

purpose beyond those originally intended by McBains Ltd. please refer to our

standard terms and conditions for further details.

Client

Project

Drawing Title

MCB Number Date Created Scale @ A1

SuitabilityProject Iden Originator Zone Level Type Discipline Number

- MCB

Revision

5th Fl, 26 Finsbury Square London EC2A 1DS

+44 (0)20 7786 7900 mcbains.co.uk

McBains Ltd

Drawn by Reviewed by Approved by

Drawing / Document Reference Status

- - - - - -

1 : 200 @ A1

P5

KC LF

UKAEA

CAR PARKING HUBS

60636R

PARKING HUB 1

LEVEL 01 GENERAL ARRANGEMENT

FOR PLANNING

ARCHITECTURE
UKA13 P1 01 DR A

DEC 2020

S40110

AK

1 : 200

LEVEL 01 GENERAL ARRANGEMENT
1

Revision Amendment Date

P1 Draft issue 16-12-20

P2 Issue for review and comments 13-01-21

P3 Issue for review and comments 03-02-21

P4 Issue for Stage Approval 10-02-21

P5 Issue for Stage Approval 18-02-21

0

SCALE 1:

1086422

m200
N

Parking Hub 1

A-P1-Level 00-FFL

Car Bays

Car Sharing Group - Phase 1 8

Car Sharing Group - Phase 2 17

EV - Phase 1 13

EV - Phase 2 32

Standard 79

149

A-P1-Level 01-FFL

Car Bays

Standard 148

148

A-P1-Level 02-FFL

Car Bays

Standard 151

151

Total Car Bays 448

A-P1-Level 00-FFL

Motorbike Bays

Standard 8

Total Parking Spaces 8

P
age 47



UP

A

B

C

D

E

F

123456789

1
P-P2-ZZ-0120

2
P-P2-ZZ-0120

P-P2-ZZ-01304
P-P2-ZZ-0130 2

P-P2-ZZ-0130

3

6500

5000120041001200
5
0
00

6
0
00

5
0
00

1
2
00

3
6
00

1
2
00

8
0
00

1
6
00

0
1
6
00

0
1
6
00

0
1
6
00

0

40007500750075007500750075007500

Standard parking bay

Car sharing group bay

Electric vehicle charging bay

Minimum car bay dimension is 2.5m x 5m

Motorbike bay dimension is 0.9m x 2.3m

P1 P2

P1 P2

BIM Transmittal Disclaimer

McBains Ltd makes no express or implied warranties with respect to the 

character, function, or capabilities of the data (inclusive of 3rd party data 

incorporated within), or the suitability of the data for any particular 

purpose beyond those originally intended by McBains Ltd. please refer to our

standard terms and conditions for further details.

Client

Project

Drawing Title

MCB Number Date Created Scale @ A1

SuitabilityProject Iden Originator Zone Level Type Discipline Number

- MCB

Revision

5th Fl, 26 Finsbury Square London EC2A 1DS

+44 (0)20 7786 7900 mcbains.co.uk

McBains Ltd

Drawn by Reviewed by Approved by

Drawing / Document Reference Status

- - - - - -

1 : 200 @ A1

P2

LF AK

UKAEA

CAR PARKING HUBS

60636R

PARKING HUB 2

LEVEL 01 GENERAL ARRANGEMENT

FOR PLANNING

ARCHITECTURE
UKA13 P2 01 DR A

FEB 2021

S40110

MB

Revision Amendment Date

P1 Issue for Stage Approval 10-02-21

P2 Issue for Stage Approval 18-02-21

0

SCALE 1:

1086422

m200

1 : 200

LEVEL 01 GENERAL ARRANGEMENT
1

Parking Hub 2

A-P1-Level 00-FFL

Car Bays

Car Sharing Group - Phase 1 8

Car Sharing Group - Phase 2 17

EV - Phase 1 13

EV - Phase 2 32

Standard 79

149

A-P1-Level 01-FFL

Car Bays

Standard 148

148

A-P1-Level 02-FFL

Car Bays

Standard 151

151

Total Car Bays 448

A-P1-Level 00-FFL

Motorbike Bays

Standard 8

Total Parking Spaces 8

NP
age 48



P-P1-ZZ-0130

P-P1-ZZ-0130

P-P1-ZZ-0130

P-P1-ZZ-0130 2

3

4

1

A B C D E F

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

7
5
00

7
5
00

7
5
00

7
5
00

7
5
00

7
5
00

7
5
00

4
0
00

1
P-P1-ZZ-0120

2
P-P1-ZZ-0120

6
5
00

5
0
00

1
2
00

4
1
00

1
2
00

1
0
00

1200 3600 1200

5000 6000 5000

8000 16000 16000 16000 16000

Standard parking bay

Car sharing group bay

Electric vehicle charging bay

Minimum car bay dimension is 2.5m x 5m

Motorbike bay dimension is 0.9m x 2.3m

P1 P2

P1 P2

BIM Transmittal Disclaimer

McBains Ltd makes no express or implied warranties with respect to the 

character, function, or capabilities of the data (inclusive of 3rd party data 

incorporated within), or the suitability of the data for any particular 

purpose beyond those originally intended by McBains Ltd. please refer to our

standard terms and conditions for further details.

Client

Project

Drawing Title

MCB Number Date Created Scale @ A1

SuitabilityProject Iden Originator Zone Level Type Discipline Number

- MCB

Revision

5th Fl, 26 Finsbury Square London EC2A 1DS

+44 (0)20 7786 7900 mcbains.co.uk

McBains Ltd

Drawn by Reviewed by Approved by

Drawing / Document Reference Status

- - - - - -

1 : 200 @ A1

P5

KC LF

UKAEA

CAR PARKING HUBS

60636R

PARKING HUB 1

LEVEL 02 GENERAL ARRANGEMENT

FOR PLANNING

ARCHITECTURE
UKA13 P1 02 DR A

DEC 2020

S40110

AK

1 : 200

LEVEL 02 GENERAL ARRANGEMENT
1

Revision Amendment Date

P1 Draft issue 16-12-20

P2 Issue for review and comments 13-01-21

P3 Issue for review and comments 03-02-21

P4 Issue for Stage Approval 10-02-21

P5 Issue for Stage Approval 18-02-21

0

SCALE 1:

1086422

m200
N

Parking Hub 1

A-P1-Level 00-FFL

Car Bays

Car Sharing Group - Phase 1 8

Car Sharing Group - Phase 2 17

EV - Phase 1 13

EV - Phase 2 32

Standard 79

149

A-P1-Level 01-FFL

Car Bays

Standard 148

148

A-P1-Level 02-FFL

Car Bays

Standard 151

151

Total Car Bays 448

A-P1-Level 00-FFL

Motorbike Bays

Standard 8

Total Parking Spaces 8

P
age 49



A

B

C

D

E

F

123456789

1
P-P2-ZZ-0120

2
P-P2-ZZ-0120

P-P2-ZZ-0130 2

P-P2-ZZ-0130

3

6500

5000120041001200
5
0
00

6
0
00

5
0
00

1
2
00

3
6
00

1
2
00

8
0
00

1
6
00

0
1
6
00

0
1
6
00

0
1
6
00

0

40007500750075007500750075007500

Standard parking bay

Car sharing group bay

Electric vehicle charging bay

Minimum car bay dimension is 2.5m x 5m

Motorbike bay dimension is 0.9m x 2.3m

P1 P2

P1 P2

BIM Transmittal Disclaimer

McBains Ltd makes no express or implied warranties with respect to the 

character, function, or capabilities of the data (inclusive of 3rd party data 

incorporated within), or the suitability of the data for any particular 

purpose beyond those originally intended by McBains Ltd. please refer to our

standard terms and conditions for further details.

Client

Project

Drawing Title

MCB Number Date Created Scale @ A1

SuitabilityProject Iden Originator Zone Level Type Discipline Number

- MCB

Revision

5th Fl, 26 Finsbury Square London EC2A 1DS

+44 (0)20 7786 7900 mcbains.co.uk

McBains Ltd

Drawn by Reviewed by Approved by

Drawing / Document Reference Status

- - - - - -

1 : 200 @ A1

P2

LF AK

UKAEA

CAR PARKING HUBS

60636R

PARKING HUB 2

LEVEL 02 GENERAL ARRANGEMENT

FOR PLANNING

ARCHITECTURE
UKA13 P2 02 DR A

FEB 2021

S40110

MB

Revision Amendment Date

P1 Issue for Stage Approval 10-02-21

P2 Issue for Stage Approval 18-02-21

0

SCALE 1:

1086422

m200

1 : 200

LEVEL 02 GENERAL ARRANGEMENT
1

Parking Hub 2

A-P1-Level 00-FFL

Car Bays

Car Sharing Group - Phase 1 8

Car Sharing Group - Phase 2 17

EV - Phase 1 13

EV - Phase 2 32

Standard 79

149

A-P1-Level 01-FFL

Car Bays

Standard 148

148

A-P1-Level 02-FFL

Car Bays

Standard 151

151

Total Car Bays 448

A-P1-Level 00-FFL

Motorbike Bays

Standard 8

Total Parking Spaces 8

NP
age 50



A-P1-Level 00-FFL

0

A-P1-Level 01-FFL

3000

12345678

A-P1-Level 02-FFL

6000

A-P1-Level 03 -FFL

9000

9

3
0
00

3
0
00

3
0
00

Standing Seam

Curtain walling

A-P1-Level 00-FFL

0

A-P1-Level 01-FFL

3000

A B C D E F

A-P1-Level 02-FFL

6000

A-P1-Level 03 -FFL

9000

3
0
00

3
0
00

3
0
00

Curtain walling

Standing Seam

Mesh railing edge protection

UK Homegrown Timber Fins

A-P1-Level 00-FFL

0

A-P1-Level 01-FFL

3000

ABCDEF

A-P1-Level 02-FFL

6000

A-P1-Level 03 -FFL

9000

3
0
00

3
0
00

3
0
00

UK Homegrown Timber Fins Mesh railing edge protection
Standing Seam

Curtain walling

A-P1-Level 00-FFL

0

A-P1-Level 01-FFL

3000

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8

A-P1-Level 02-FFL

6000

A-P1-Level 03 -FFL

9000

9

3
0
00

3
0
00

3
0
00

Curtain walling

Standing Seam UK Homegrown Timber Fins
Mesh railing edge protection

BIM Transmittal Disclaimer

McBains Ltd makes no express or implied warranties with respect to the 

character, function, or capabilities of the data (inclusive of 3rd party data 

incorporated within), or the suitability of the data for any particular 

purpose beyond those originally intended by McBains Ltd. please refer to our

standard terms and conditions for further details.

Client

Project

Drawing Title

MCB Number Date Created Scale @ A1

SuitabilityProject Iden Originator Zone Level Type Discipline Number

- MCB

Revision

5th Fl, 26 Finsbury Square London EC2A 1DS

+44 (0)20 7786 7900 mcbains.co.uk

McBains Ltd

Drawn by Reviewed by Approved by

Drawing / Document Reference Status

- - - - - -

1 : 200 @ A1

P4

LF AK

UKAEA

CAR PARKING HUBS

60636R

PARKING HUB 1

ELEVATIONS

FOR PLANNING

ARCHITECTURE
UKA13 P1 ZZ DR A

JAN 2021

S40130

MB

Revision Amendment Date

P1 Issue for review and comments 13-01-21

P2 Issue for review and comments 03-02-21

P3 Issue for Stage Approval 10-02-21

P4 Issue for Stage Approval 18-02-21

1 : 200

North East Elevation
2

1 : 200

South East Elevation
1

1 : 200

North West Elevation
3

1 : 200

South West Elevation
4 0

SCALE 1:

1086422

m200

2

1

4

3

P
age 51



A-P1-Level 00-FFL

0

A-P1-Level 01-FFL

3000

ABCDEF

A-P1-Level 02-FFL

6000

A-P1-Level 03 -FFL

90003
0
00

3
0
00

3
0
00

Mesh railing edge protection UK Homegrown Timber FinsStanding Seam

Curtain walling

A-P1-Level 00-FFL

0

A-P1-Level 01-FFL

3000

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8

A-P1-Level 02-FFL

6000

A-P1-Level 03 -FFL

9000

9

UK Homegrown Timber Fins
Mesh railing edge protection

Curtain walling

Standing Seam
Precast Concrete Wall

A-P1-Level 00-FFL

0

A-P1-Level 01-FFL

3000

A B C D E F

A-P1-Level 02-FFL

6000

A-P1-Level 03 -FFL

9000

3
0
00

3
0
00

3
0
00

Precast Concrete Wall

UK Homegrown Timber FinsCurtain walling

Standing Seam

A-P1-Level 00-FFL

0

A-P1-Level 01-FFL

3000

12345678

A-P1-Level 02-FFL

6000

A-P1-Level 03 -FFL

9000

9

3
0
00

3
0
00

3
0
00

Mesh railing edge protection UK Homegrown Timber Fins
Curtain walling

Standing Seam

BIM Transmittal Disclaimer

McBains Ltd makes no express or implied warranties with respect to the 

character, function, or capabilities of the data (inclusive of 3rd party data 

incorporated within), or the suitability of the data for any particular 

purpose beyond those originally intended by McBains Ltd. please refer to our

standard terms and conditions for further details.

Client

Project

Drawing Title

MCB Number Date Created Scale @ A1

SuitabilityProject Iden Originator Zone Level Type Discipline Number

- MCB

Revision

5th Fl, 26 Finsbury Square London EC2A 1DS

+44 (0)20 7786 7900 mcbains.co.uk

McBains Ltd

Drawn by Reviewed by Approved by

Drawing / Document Reference Status

- - - - - -

1 : 200 @ A1

P2

LF AK

UKAEA

CAR PARKING HUBS

60636R

PARKING HUB 2

ELEVATIONS

FOR PLANNING

ARCHITECTURE
UKA13 P2 ZZ DR A

FEB 2021

S40130

MB

Revision Amendment Date

P1 Issue for Stage Approval 10-02-21

P2 Issue for Stage Approval 18-02-21

0

SCALE 1:

1086422

m200

4

3

2

1

1 : 200

West Elevation
2

1 : 200

North Elevation
1

1 : 200

East Elevation
4

1 : 200

South Elevation
3

P
age 52



South Oxfordshire District Council – Planning Committee – 13 October 2021 

 

 
 APPLICATION NO. P21/S1805/HH 
 APPLICATION TYPE HOUSEHOLDER 
 REGISTERED 15.4.2021 
 PARISH LONG WITTENHAM 
 WARD MEMBER(S) Sam Casey-Rerhaye 
 APPLICANT Mr & Mrs Lloyd-Jukes 
 SITE Vincent House, High Street, Long Wittenham, OX14 

4QQ 
 PROPOSAL Removal of existing garage and replacement with 

oak detailed garage as amended by plans 10A, 11A, 
12AB and 13 A which reduces the height of the 
proposed garage. 

 OFFICER Kim Gould 
 

 
1.0 INTRODUCTION AND PROPOSAL 
1.1 This application has been referred to the Planning Committee because it has been 

called in by Councillor Sam Casey-Rerhaye. 
 

1.2 Vincent House lies within the built-up limits of Long Wittenham within the conservation 
area. It is a traditional red brick property with a plain tile roof set back from the 
highway. Pedestrian access is gained off the highway across the grass verge at the 
front of the property with vehicular access and parking being taken at the rear from 
Fieldside to the existing garage. 
 

1.3  The site is identified on the Ordnance Survey extract attached as Appendix 1. 
 

1.4 The application seeks full planning permission to remove the existing single storey 
garage and studio at the rear of Vincent House and replace it with a timber clad three 
bay garage. It would be constructed with oak detailing, timber cladding and plain tile 
roof. 
 

1.5 The proposal was the subject of a pre application advice request ref P20/S1985/PEO. 
 

1.6  The plans have been amended during the determination period in response to 
conservation officer’s comments and objections from neighbours and the Parish 
Council. Reduced copies of the amended plans accompanying the application are 
attached as Appendix 2. Full copies of the plans and supporting information together 
with consultation responses are available for inspection on the council’s website at 
www.southoxon.gov.uk 
 

2.0 SUMMARY OF CONSULTATIONS & REPRESENTATIONS 
2.1 Long Wittenham Parish Council –  Objection  

Original plans – Objections on the basis of   

 Adverse impact on the character of the conservation area 

 Bulk and mass of replacement building would adversely affect the conservation 
area. 

 Significant impact on immediate neighbours 

 Adverse impact on highway safety 

 Condition required to ensure no parking on the highway outside the garage. 

 A condition preventing conversion into a dwelling would be of no use as 
enforcement team is significantly stretched. 

Page 53

Agenda Item 9

http://www.southoxon.gov.uk/ccm/planning/ApplicationDetails.jsp?REF=P21/S1805/HH
http://www.southoxon.gov.uk/


South Oxfordshire District Council – Planning Committee – 13 October 2021 

 Supports the concerns of the Long Wittenham History Group (detailed below) 
 

Amended plans – Objection  

 The amendments do not significantly address the concerns that were raised 
initially and confirms objection on those grounds. 

 
County Archaeological Services -  No objection  
 
Drainage  – No objection subject to condition requiring surface water drainage details 
to be submitted and approved prior to the commencement of development. 
 
Highways Liaison Officer (Oxfordshire County Council) – No objection subject to a 
condition preventing the conversion of the garage/carport to residential 
accommodation. 
 
Forestry Officer – No objection subject to a condition requiring tree protection 
measures submitted to be in place prior to the commencement of works. 
 
Conservation Officer – No objection on heritage grounds. 
 
Neighbours - Objections   
 
Original plans (3) 

 Two storey replacement of a single storey garage and artist’s studio in the 
conservation area. 

 Significantly higher than the existing building – visually prominent 

 Heritage report is dismissive in terms of the impact on nearby listed building and 
says it is not of any heritage value. The building is associated with Robert 
Gibbings. 

 Would want to see wooden garage doors to prevent theft  and vandalism 

 Rooflights will directly overlook a garden and patio area 

 First floor accommodation should only be used as storage 
 

Amended plans (2) 
 

 The amended plans have not addressed concerns 

 We met 3 times with the applicant over a number of months and although some 
changes were made, I would not say that broad agreement was reached. 

 Roof windows will still overlook my property 

 This building could be converted into a dwelling 
 
Long Wittenham History Group –  
 
Robert Gibbings was a significant author, engraver, traveller, naturalist and teacher. 
The studio building itself may not be grand but its connection with Gibbings is most 
certainly important in the same way that the childhood homes of the Beatles are not 
architecturally important but nevertheless have a significance by association with 
remarkable people. Gibbings working in his studio in the garden at Footbridge Cottage 
headstone in the churchyard. 
Heritage statements need to be checked and challenged and on this occasion it is clear 
that the Heritage statement is misleading. It is very easy for the history and heritage of 
villages to be eroded small bit by small bit until no trace remains. Please do not let this 
happen here. 
   

Page 54



South Oxfordshire District Council – Planning Committee – 13 October 2021 

3.0 RELEVANT PLANNING HISTORY 
3.1 P20/S4540/DIS - Approved (15/12/2020) 

Discharge of condition 5 - location of drainage and services on application ref. 
P20/S2982/HH Erection of single storey rear extension 
 
P20/S2982/HH - Approved (11/11/2020) 
Erection of single storey rear extension (as amplified by Arboricultural Impact 
Assessment report received on 21/10/20). 
 
P20/S1985/PEO – Pre application advice provided (16/07/2020) 
Removal of existing garage and replacement with oak frame detailed garage. 
 
P17/S4234/HH - Approved (11/01/2018) 
Front entrance porch 
 
P17/S1541/HH - Approved (27/06/2017) 
Alter position of the fence to the front of the dwelling. 
 
P14/S2913/NM - Approved (02/10/2014) 
Non-material amendment to planning permission P13/S0064/EX, to insert barn style 
garage doors into the existing opening. Demolition of existing detached double garage 
and erection of a garage and garden room with a home office within the roof space. 
 
P13/S0064/EX - Approved (08/03/2013) 
Extension to the time for implementation of planning permission (Demolition of existing 
detached double garage and erection of a garage and garden room with a home office 
within the roof space). 
 

4.0 ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT ASSESSMENT 
4.1 N/A 

 
5.0 POLICY & GUIDANCE 
5.1 Development Plan Policies 

  
 South Oxfordshire Local Plan 2035 (SOLP) Policies: 

DES1  -  Delivering High Quality Development 
DES10  -  Carbon Reduction 
DES2  -  Enhancing Local Character 
DES8  -  Promoting Sustainable Design 
DES9  -  Renewable Energy 
ENV1  -  Landscape and Countryside 
ENV3  -  Biodiversity 
ENV6  -  Historic Environment 
ENV8  -  Conservation Areas 
ENV12 - Pollution  
H20  -  Extensions to Dwellings 
TRANS5  -  Consideration of Development Proposals 
 

5.2 Neighbourhood Plan 
 Long Wittenham Parish Council has reviewed their current neighbourhood plan and 

submitted a modified version to South Oxfordshire District Council. The reviewed plan 
is considered to contain significant modifications and therefore needs to undergo an 
independent examination and local referendum. As such the current made plan 
(October 2027) is the relevant document and the relevant policies are: 
 

Page 55

http://www.southoxon.gov.uk/ccm/planning/ApplicationDetails.jsp?REF=P20/S4540/DIS
http://www.southoxon.gov.uk/ccm/planning/ApplicationDetails.jsp?REF=P20/S2982/HH
http://www.southoxon.gov.uk/ccm/planning/ApplicationDetails.jsp?REF=P20/S1985/PEO
http://www.southoxon.gov.uk/ccm/planning/ApplicationDetails.jsp?REF=P17/S4234/HH
http://www.southoxon.gov.uk/ccm/planning/ApplicationDetails.jsp?REF=P17/S1541/HH
http://www.southoxon.gov.uk/ccm/planning/ApplicationDetails.jsp?REF=P14/S2913/NM
http://www.southoxon.gov.uk/ccm/planning/ApplicationDetails.jsp?REF=P13/S0064/EX


South Oxfordshire District Council – Planning Committee – 13 October 2021 

LW4 Design 
LW5 Car parking  
 

5.3 Supplementary Planning Guidance/Documents 
 South Oxfordshire Design Guide 2016 (SODG 2016) 

  
5.4 National Planning Policy Framework and Planning Practice Guidance 

 
5.5 Other Relevant Legislation 
 Human Rights Act 1998 

The provisions of the Human Rights Act 1998 have been taken into account in the 
processing of the application and the preparation of this report. 
 

 Equality Act 2010 
In determining this planning application, the Council has regard to its equalities 
obligations including its obligations under Section 149 of the Equality Act 2010. 

 
6.0 PLANNING CONSIDERATIONS 
6.1 The relevant planning considerations are the following: 

 

 Impact on the character and appearance of the Long Wittenham 
conservation area 

 Design and character- impact on the Long Wittenham conservation area.  

 Residential amenity 

 Access and Parking 

 Carbon reduction and sustainable design  

 Impact on trees 
 

6.2 Impact on the character and appearance of the Long Wittenham conservation 
area and historical significance of the existing building 
The site lies within the Long Wittenham conservation area and is sited relatively close 
to listed buildings. Policy ENV6 of the SOLP seeks to ensure that proposals for new 
development should be sensitively designed and should not cause harm to the historic 
environment. Policy ENV7 seeks to ensure that development sympathetic to the setting 
of a listed building.  
 

6.3 A heritage statement has been provided with this application. This looks at the 
possibility that the existing garage could be considered a non-designated heritage 
asset by means of its association with Robert Gibbings. The heritage statement 
concludes that the garage was built after Robert Gibbings association with the property 
and is otherwise of no historic and architectural interest in its own right. This is at odds 
with the representations provided by the Long Wittenham History Group which 
maintains that the studio was that built by Robert Gibbings and whilst not grand, is of 
significance as a result of its association with this person. 
 

6.4 The Council’s conservation officer has carefully considered the information provided by 
both the applicant and consultees. She agrees that the connection of Robert Gibbings 
to the village is of historical and artistic interest. She is, however, of the view that his 
contribution to the village is best represented and sustained by the literary works he 
produced and that this would not be diminished by the removal of the studio building. 
She has no objection to the removal of the structure. 
 

6.5 The proposed structure would replace an existing building which is visible within the 
street scene. The key difference is the proposed removal of a hedge along the front of 

Page 56



South Oxfordshire District Council – Planning Committee – 13 October 2021 

the site which would enable vehicular access to the triple garage directly from Fieldside. 
This hedge could be removed without the need for planning permission and whilst it is 
acknowledged that it contributes to the green character of the site it is not integral to the 
special character and appearance of the conservation area. There are other instances 
where buildings, such as Lovegrove Barn, are positioned directly onto Fieldside without  
hedging but maintaining a grass verge. This proposal would include the provision of 
grasscrete blocks to preserve the impression of a grass verge. 
 

6.6 The proposed building is 0.9m (maximum) higher than the existing. It would be 
constructed using good quality traditional materials. The Council’s conservation officer 
has considered the proposal and agrees that the design of the building would preserve 
the general character of Fieldside, echoing the design of traditional cart sheds, rather 
than having a suburban garage design or a particularly domestic character, which is 
considered appropriate in this location. Its scale would be similar to other barn type 
buildings along Fieldside and would not appear out of character within this context. 
 

6.7 Design and character  
Policy DES2 of the SOLP seeks to ensure that all new development is designed to 
reflect the positive features that make up the character of the local area and should 
both physically and visually enhance and complement the surroundings. 
 

6.8 In this case, the proposed garage would replace a building of no particular architectural 
merit and would be constructed using high quality traditional materials. As illustrated 
below, the new building would be higher than the existing but not to such an extent as 
to be visually intrusive or out of character. The outline of the existing building is shown 
as a dotted line. 
 

 
 

6.9 Residential amenity 
DES6 of the SOLP seeks to ensure that development proposals will not result in 
significant adverse impacts on the amenity of neighbouring properties in relation to, for 
example, loss of privacy and dominance or external lighting. 
 

Page 57



South Oxfordshire District Council – Planning Committee – 13 October 2021 

6.10 The neighbour at no 6 The Crescent has expressed concern over the potential loss of 
privacy from the proposed rooflights in the south-eastern (front) elevation. There are 3 
rooflights proposed which would have a cil height of 1.4m. The rooflights would face 
onto Fieldside and the side/rear garden of No 6. Given the cill height and the distance 
from the neighbour across an access track, I am of the view that this would not result in 
significant adverse impact on the neighbour’s privacy. The GIS extract below illustrates 
the relationship between the application site and no 6 The Crescent.  
 

 
 
 

6.11 Access and Parking 
Policy TRANS5 of the SOLP seeks to ensure that all new development provides for a 
safe and convenient access for all users to the highway network and that parking is 
provided in accordance with Oxfordshire County Council parking standards. Objections 
from the Parish Council and neighbours have included concerns over highway safety.  
 

6.12     The existing boundary hedge will be removed to provide direct access from the 
replacement garage onto Fieldside. Visibility splays have been provided together with 
space for manoeuvring and parking. The County Highway Authority has not objected to 
the proposal. As such there are no technical reasons to refuse this application on 
highway safety grounds. 
 

6.13 Sustainable features and carbon reduction  
 DES8 of the SOLP states that all new development, including building conversions, 

refurbishments, and extensions, should seek to minimise the carbon and energy 
impacts of their design and construction. Policy DES9 of the SOLP encourages the 
incorporation of renewable and low carbon energy applications within all development. 
 

6.14 The proposals are relatively modest in terms of size and scale and offer limited 
opportunity to minimise the carbon and energy efficiency. The front of the proposed 
garage is intended to be left open so insulating the ground floor would not be 
appropriate.  The Design and Access statement accompanying the application states 
that the materials for the building will be sourced from ethical and local companies 
where possible. The agent has confirmed that all materials including insulation will be 

Page 58



South Oxfordshire District Council – Planning Committee – 13 October 2021 

BREEAM A/A+ rated. All lighting will be low energy LED fittings and a car charging 
point will be included within the electrical installation.  I am therefore satisfied the  
design addresses the aims of Policies DES8 and DES9 of the SOLP.  
 

6.15 Trees 
Policy ENV1 of the SOLP seeks to ensure that South Oxfordshire’s landscape features 
are protected against harmful development and should protect features that contribute 
to the nature of and quality of South Oxfordshire’s landscape such as trees. The trees 
within this site are protected by the conservation area. An Arboricultural Impact 
Assessment Report has been submitted with this application which has been 
considered by the Council’s forestry officer. He has concluded that having regard to the 
existing site conditions the proposed development would not have any significant 
impact on the adjacent trees. By removing the existing hard surfacing and returning it to 
garden the growing environment for the trees on the south western boundary will be 
improved. The submitted tree protection measures set out in the arboricultural report 
are acceptable and should be put in place prior to any works starting on site. This can 
be covered in conditions 
 

6.16 Community Infrastructure Levy 
 The additional floor area over and above the existing structure is, however, less than 

100sqm so CIL would not be payable. 
 

6.17 Pre-commencement conditions 
Pre-commencement conditions in relation to tree protection and surface water details 
are recommended. These conditions have been agreed with the agent.  

 
7.0 CONCLUSION 
7.1 The principle of replacing the existing outbuilding is acceptable. The new garage would 

not result in a significant  impact on neighbour amenity or result in issues affecting 
highway safety. It would preserve the character and appearance of the conservation 
area. Therefore, the proposal accords with the relevant Development Plan policies.  

 
8.0 RECOMMENDATION 
8.1 That planning permission is granted subject to the following conditions: 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

1 : Commencement three years - Full Planning Permission 
2 : Approved plans  
3 : Materials as on plan 
4 : No garage conversion  
5 : Tree protection  
6 : Surface water details  
 
 
Author:                       Kim Gould 
Contact number        01235 422600 
Email                          planning@southoxon.gov.uk 
 

 

 

 

   

 

 

Page 59



This page is intentionally left blank



P
age 61

A
genda Item

 9
P

21/S
1805/H

H

SAV_KIMGOU
Typewriter
APPENDIX 1

SAV_KIMGOU_1
Arrow

SAV_KIMGOU_2
Typewriter
The site



...\Existing and Proposed.dgn  13/08/2021 13:08:38

Appendix 2

P
age 62



...\Existing and Proposed.dgn  13/08/2021 13:09:32

P
age 63



...\Existing and Proposed.dgn  13/08/2021 13:10:48

P
age 64



...\Existing and Proposed.dgn  13/08/2021 13:06:56

P
age 65



T
his page is intentionally left blank



South Oxfordshire District Council – Planning Committee – 13 October 2021 

 

 
 APPLICATION NO. P21/S2385/FUL 
 APPLICATION TYPE FULL APPLICATION 
 REGISTERED 24.5.2021 
 PARISH SOUTH STOKE 
 WARD MEMBER(S) Maggie Filipova-Rivers 
 APPLICANT Claude Fenton Ltd 
 SITE Land at Woodcote Road, South Stoke, RG8 0JJ 
 PROPOSAL Variation of condition 2 of application 

P19/S2865/RM for the removal of the detached 
carport to Plots 2 & 3, removal of the carport to Plot 
1, omission of the bike store to Plot 3, a new window 
to Plot 3 (east elevation) and relocation of 2 parking 
spaces to Plot 2. (As amplified by tree protection 
and landscape information received 6 August 2021) 
 
Application for approval of reserved matters relating 
to appearance, landscaping, layout and scale 
following application P17/S3206/O for residential 
development (up to 5 dwellings), and associated 
works, including access. 

 OFFICER Paul Bowers 
 

 
1.0 INTRODUCTION AND PROPOSAL 
1.1 This report sets out the officer’s recommendation that planning permission should be 

granted having regard to the material planning considerations and relevant policies of 
the development plan.  
 

1.2 The application is referred to Planning Committee as the views of the South Stoke 
Parish Council differ from your officer’s recommendation.  
 

1.3 The site lies to the south of Woodcote Road on the edge of South Stoke 
 
South Stoke is a small village between Wallingford and Goring and sits within the River 
Thames corridor that runs to the west of the village.  The village and application site are 
washed over by the Chilterns Area of Outstanding Natural Beauty (AONB), but there 
are no other planning designations or constraints that affect the site.    
 
A plan identifying the site can be found at Appendix 1.  
 

1.4 Outline planning permission was granted by Planning Committee in January 2018 for 
the erection of up to 5 dwellings. All matters were kept in reserve except for details of 
the site access that were approved through the outline planning permission. 
 

1.5 An application was made under reference P19/S0171/RM for the reserved matters that 
were outstanding from the outline planning permission and sought to discharge the 
various items which were the subject of planning conditions.  
 
That application was refused for a single reason as follows; 
 
Plot 4 of the proposed scheme, due to the scale, layout, appearance, inadequate 
separation distance to the neighbouring dwelling and lower ground level of the 

Page 67

Agenda Item 10

http://www.southoxon.gov.uk/ccm/planning/ApplicationDetails.jsp?REF=P21/S2385/FUL


South Oxfordshire District Council – Planning Committee – 13 October 2021 

neighbouring dwelling (Clogwyn Mawr to the west), would have an overbearing 
impact upon the outlook from east facing windows of the neighbouring property 
resulting in unacceptable harm on the residential amenities of neighbouring 
occupiers contrary to policy CSQ3 of the South Oxfordshire Core Strategy 2027 
and policies D1, D4, G2 and H4 of the South Oxfordshire Local Plan 2011. 
 

1.6 A second reserved matters application was submitted under application reference 
P19/S2865/RM to secure approval of the remaining reserved matters for appearance, 
landscaping, layout, and scale. Details were also submitted to discharge the 
conditions of the outline permission relating to drainage, tree protection, ecology and 
highway matters. 
 
Much of the scheme remained very similar to the proposal which had been found to 
be acceptable to the Council in all but one regard. The application differed in ways to 
make improve the relationship of the proposed dwelling on Plot 4 with Clogwyn Mawr.  
The differences are: 
 

 Swapping the fence and the hedge relationship between Plot 4 and Clogwyn 
Mawr (maintaining the post and rail boundary fence and including a vacant 
maintenance strip to the Clogwyn Mawr side and hedging outside the privacy 
fence for a softer outlook) 

 

 Position of Plot 4 was moved to the east to allow 12m separation from 
Clogwyn Mawr, created by the removal of a single storey element 

 

 The omission of windows facing Clogwyn Mawr 
 

 The removal of fencing to the plot frontages of Plots 1, 4 and 5 to create a 
more open arrangement. 

 
The application was granted reserved matters approval on the 4 December 2019. 
 

1.7 A subsequent discharge application was submitted and approved relating to Condition 
3 of the reserved matters permission which concerned the proposed materials.  
 

1.8 An application was then made under Section 73 of the Planning Act to vary the 
approved plans condition to substitute new plans for some of the approved plans and 
to vary the materials condition. The differences between the approved and proposed 
plans are as follows; 
 

- Changes to the surfacing materials for the driveway. 
- Change from a glass balustrade to a metal balcony balustrade on Plot 5 
- Substitute the approved external materials schedule with a new materials 

schedule. 
 

1.9 This application seeks to make a further application under section 73 of The Act to 
make the following changes to the approved plans by varying Condition 2 of the 
reserved matters permission; 
 

- Removal of the detached carport to Plots 2 & 3. 
- Removal of the carport to Plot 1. 
- Omission of the bike store to Plot 3. 
- New window to Plot 3 (east elevation) and  
- Relocation of 2 no parking spaces to Plot 2. 

 

Page 68



South Oxfordshire District Council – Planning Committee – 13 October 2021 

1.10 The changes to the layout of the site in terms of the deletion of the carports and 
movement of the parking spaces can be seen in the comparison below; 
 
Approved plan -                                            Proposed plan -  

                                                       
 

1.11 Reduced copies of the plans accompanying the application are attached as Appendix 
2 to this report. 
 
A larger plan showing the approved layout can be found at Appendix 3 for a clear 
comparison of the changes to the layout.  
 
 All the plans and representations received can be viewed on the council’s website 
www.southoxon.gov.uk under the planning application reference number. 
 

2.0 SUMMARY OF CONSULTATIONS & REPRESENTATIONS 
2.1 South Stoke Parish Council – Object to the development for the following reasons; 

 
- Concern about the gradual move away from the originally permitted scheme. 
- The loss of the car ports will result in the car being more visible from various 

points making the site look urban.  
- Reduction in the central turning area within the development with the 

enlargement of the gardens for Plot 2 and 3.  
 
Third Party Representations –  
 
1 x letter of objection covering the following principle issues; 
 

- Concentration of parking at the front of the site.  
- Reduction in turning areas.  

 

Page 69

http://www.southoxon.gov.uk/


South Oxfordshire District Council – Planning Committee – 13 October 2021 

1 x letter of no objection however raises a concern about how the western boundary 
has been drawn.  
 
County Archaeological Services – No objection. 
 
Forestry Officer – No objection to the additional information submitted in relation to 
landscaping.  
 
Highways Liaison Officer – No objection subject to a reworded condition to reflect the 
new layout and parking.  
 

3.0 RELEVANT PLANNING HISTORY 
3.1 P21/S0388/FUL - Approved (19/03/2021) 

Variation of conditions -  2 (Approved plans) & 3 (Schedule of Materials) on application 
P19/S2865/RM - To seek a minor material amendment for the partial replacement of 
block paving with gravel and for the replacement of glass balcony balustrade with metal 
balcony balustrade (Plot 5). Substitute of approved external materials (ref 
P20/S2897/DIS). 
 
Application for approval of reserved matters relating to appearance, landscaping, layout 
and scale following application P17/S3206/O for residential development (up to 5 
dwellings), and associated works, including access. 
 
P20/S2897/DIS - Approved (15/09/2020) 
Discharge of condition 3 - Schedule of Materials on application ref. P19/S2865/RM 
 
Application for approval of reserved matters relating to appearance, landscaping, layout 
and scale following application P17/S3206/O for residential development (up to 5 
dwellings), and associated works, including access. (As amended by Site Plan PP1012-
A, Soft Landscape Plan 0747.1.1 Rev D, Landscape Visual Impact Assessment V4 
01.10.19 and Preliminary Ecological Appraisal Update 2019 and amended Construction 
Method Statement and visibility splays accompanying email from agent received 15 
October 2019 and Arboricultural Method Statement updated October 2019 and 
Drainage Plan 003 Revision P10) Discharge of conditions 1-16 on application ref. 
P17/S3206/O. 1 - Submission of RM and commencement, 2 - Approved plans 3 - 
Dwellings not to exceed 5 , 4 -Mix of dwellings. 5 - Landscaping scheme, 6 - Tree 
protection 7 - Biodiversity enhancement and mitigation 8 - Surface water drainage, 9 - 
Access 10 - Vision splay, 11 - Construction Traffic Management Plan 12 - No surface 
water drainage to highway 13 - Details of refuse and recycling storage, 14 - Fire 
Hydrants 15 - Hours of operation, 16 - Construction Method Statement. 
 
P19/S2865/RM - Approved (04/12/2019) 
Application for approval of reserved matters relating to appearance, landscaping, layout 
and scale following application P17/S3206/O for residential development (up to 5 
dwellings), and associated works, including access.  (As amended by Site Plan 
PP1012-A, Soft Landscape Plan 0747.1.1 Rev D, Landscape Visual Impact 
Assessment V4 01.10.19 and Preliminary Ecological Appraisal Update 2019 and 
amended Construction Method Statement and visibility splays accompanying email 
from agent received 15 October 2019 and Arboricultural Method Statement updated 
October 2019 and Drainage Plan 003 Revision P10)  Discharge of conditions 1-16 on 
application ref. P17/S3206/O. 
 
1 - Submission of RM and commencement, 2 - Approved plans 
3 - Dwellings not to exceed 5 , 4 -Mix of dwellings. 
5 - Landscaping scheme, 6 - Tree protection 

Page 70

http://www.southoxon.gov.uk/ccm/planning/ApplicationDetails.jsp?REF=P21/S0388/FUL
http://www.southoxon.gov.uk/ccm/planning/ApplicationDetails.jsp?REF=P20/S2897/DIS
http://www.southoxon.gov.uk/ccm/planning/ApplicationDetails.jsp?REF=P19/S2865/RM


South Oxfordshire District Council – Planning Committee – 13 October 2021 

7 - Biodiversity enhancement and mitigation 
8 - Surface water drainage, 9 - Access 
10 - Vision splay, 11 - Construction Traffic Management Plan  
12 - No surface water drainage to highway 
13 - Details of refuse and recycling storage, 14 -  Fire Hydrants 
15 -  Hours of operation, 16 - Construction Method Statement 
 
P19/S0171/RM - Refused (05/07/2019) 
Reserved matters application (for the appearance, landscaping, layout, and scale) 
following Outline approval P17/S3206/O for a residential development of up to 5 
dwellings, and associated works, including access.  
 
In addition to discharge conditions 5- landscaping, 6- tree protection, 7- biodiversity 
mitigation and enhancement strategy, 11- construction traffic management, , 13- refuse 
and recycling storage and 16- construction method statement. 
 
P17/S3206/O - Approved (18/01/2018) 
Residential development (up to 5 dwellings), and associated works, including 
access.(as amplified & amended by information received 13 November 2017). 

 
4.0 ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT ASSESSMENT 
4.1 N/A 

 
5.0 POLICY & GUIDANCE 
5.1 Development Plan Policies 

 South Oxfordshire Local Plan 2035 (SOLP) Policies: 
DES1  -  Delivering High Quality Development 
DES2  -  Enhancing Local Character 
DES3  -  Design and Access Statements 
DES5  -  Outdoor Amenity Space 
DES6  -  Residential Amenity 
ENV1  -  Landscape and Countryside 
ENV3  -  Biodiversity 
H8  -  Housing in the Smaller Villages 
INF4  -  Water Resources 
STRAT1  -  The Overall Strategy 
TRANS5  -  Consideration of Development Proposals 
 

5.2 Neighbourhood Plan 
 N/A 

 
5.3 Supplementary Planning Guidance/Documents 

 South Oxfordshire Design Guide 2016 (SODG 2016) 
 Developer Contributions SPD  

 
5.4 National Planning Policy Framework and Planning Practice Guidance 

 
5.5 Other Relevant Legislation 
 Human Rights Act 1998 

The provisions of the Human Rights Act 1998 have been taken into account in the 
processing of the application and the preparation of this report. 

 Equality Act 2010 
In determining this planning application the Council has regard to its equalities 
obligations including its obligations under Section 149 of the Equality Act 2010. 

 

Page 71

http://www.southoxon.gov.uk/ccm/planning/ApplicationDetails.jsp?REF=P19/S0171/RM
http://www.southoxon.gov.uk/ccm/planning/ApplicationDetails.jsp?REF=P17/S3206/O


South Oxfordshire District Council – Planning Committee – 13 October 2021 

 
6.0 PLANNING CONSIDERATIONS 
6.1 When assessing section 73 applications the Council can only consider the original 

condition and the reasons for applying that condition; new conditions can be attached 
but only in so far as they apply to the original condition. If the Council decides that 
planning permission should be granted subject to differing proposed conditions, 
planning permission should be granted. If permission is required to be granted subject 
to the same conditions as those to which the previous permission was granted, they 
should refuse the application. 
 

6.2 Paragraph 015 of NPPG notes where an application under section 73 is granted, the 
effect is the issue of a new planning permission, sitting alongside the original 
permission, which remains intact and un-amended. Furthermore, to assist with clarity 
decision notices for the grant of planning permission under section 73 should also 
repeat the relevant conditions from the original planning permission, unless they have 
already been discharged. A section 73 application cannot be used to vary the time limit 
for implementation, this condition must remain unchanged from the original permission. 
 

6.3 This report does not repeat all the planning issues that were assessed in 
connection with the principle of development on the site, given that this has recently 
been considered and determined to be acceptable. Given the context of the changes, 
the conditions being varied and the reasons for applying them, it is necessary to 
consider the impact of the changes on the character and appearance of the site and 
surrounding area and the impact on neighbouring properties.  
 

6.4 Therefore the main issues to consider in relation to this proposal are; 
 

 Whether there has been any material change in site circumstances or 
planning policy in the intervening time between the grant of planning 
permission and now.  

 Impact of the changes to Plot 3. 

 Impact of the changes to the layout on the character and appearance of 
the area and the AONB.  

 Impact on highway safety.  

 The conditions that are now relevant 
 

6.5 Section 38 (6) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 requires 
applications for planning permission be determined in accordance with the 
Development Plan unless material considerations indicate otherwise.  
 
Section 70 (2) of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 provides that the local 
planning authority shall have regard to the provisions of the Development Plan, so far 
as material to the application, and to any other material considerations. 
 
Since the grant of planning permission there has been a change in the development 
plan with the adoption of the South Oxfordshire Local Plan 2035. 
 
The introduction of this new plan has not resulted in a significant change in policy that 
would materially affect the outcome of this application. There has been a stepped 
change in terms of policies that relate to reduction in carbon emissions and the 
requirement of an energy statement to demonstrate how the design would address in 
reduction of 40% relative to the building regulations. However, the parent permission 
remains extant in this case and a dwelling can be built without having to conform to this 
policy. As such it would not be reasonable to require full compliance with policy DES10 
of the SOLP.  

Page 72



South Oxfordshire District Council – Planning Committee – 13 October 2021 

6.6 Impact of the changes to the surface and Plot 5 on the amenities of the 
occupants of nearby properties. 
 
Policy DES6 relates to residential amenity and requires that development should 
demonstrate that they will not result in significant adverse impacts on the amenity of 
neighbouring uses, when considering both individual and cumulative impacts, in 
relation to the following factors: 
 
i) loss of privacy, daylight or sunlight; 
ii) dominance or visual intrusion; 
iii) noise or vibration; 
iv) smell, dust, heat, odour, gases or other emissions; 
v) pollution, contamination or the use of/or storage of hazardous 
substances; and 
vi) external lighting 
 

 The new window being added to Plot 3 is on the eastern elevation looking toward the 
site boundary and the open countryside beyond. It has no impact on adjoining property.  
The proposed changes therefore accord with Policy DES6.  
 

6.7 Impact of the changes to the layout on the character and appearance of the area 
and the AONB.  
 
Policy ENV1 of SOLP states that the highest level of protection will be given to the 
landscape and scenic beauty of the Chilterns and North Wessex Downs Areas of 
Outstanding Natural Beauty (AONBs). It states, amongst other criteria, the following; 
 
• Development in an AONB or affecting the setting of an AONB will only be permitted 
where it conserves, and where possible, enhances the character and natural beauty of 
the AONB; 
 
• Development in an AONB will only be permitted where it is appropriate to the 
economic and environmental wellbeing of the area or promotes understanding or 
enjoyment of the AONB 
 

6.8 The overall built form on the site is reduced with the loss of the car port building serving 
Plot 2 located at the rear of that plot and adjacent to the eastern boundary and also the 
reduction of the car port for Plot 1. 
 
This has meant that the garden areas for Plot 2 and 3 have increased. The parking for 
Plot has been relocated in front of the building adjacent to the boundary with the road.  
 

6.9 The main visual impact from this change will be the new parking spaces. The area that 
is being dedicated to this is 25 square metres. The width of the site along the road 
frontage is the 46 metres. The proposed parking spaces take up 5 metres. The spaces 
are also located 6 metres back into the site from the boundary with the road.  
 
This is, in my view, a relatively small area. It provides a formal solution to what could 
have been an informal parking area for ease of access to the front of Plot 2 and creates 
a similar impact of parked vehicles in this location. 
 
 

6.10 From wider and long views this change will not in my opinion cause material harm. The 
vehicles will not be totally screened but they will be seen in the context of the back drop 
of the proposed houses. 

Page 73



South Oxfordshire District Council – Planning Committee – 13 October 2021 

6.11 The changes to the layout have some implications for the approved tree protection and 
approved landscaping. These have been considered in detail and additional information 
in this regard has been provided with the application. The Council’s Tree Officer is 
happy with the extent of planting shown on the landscape plans and the conditions of 
the original permission have been updated to reflect these new plans.  
 

6.12 Your officers are satisfied that the scheme in this amended form, in conjunction with the 
proposed landscaping and tree protection, does not give rise to any additional material 
harm. The development continues to conserve the landscape of this part of the AONB 
in line with national and local planning policy.  
 

6.13 Impact on highway safety.  
 
With respect to highway safety matters the advice from Central Government set out in 
the National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) is as follows: 
 
Development should only be prevented or refused on transport grounds where the 
residual cumulative impacts of the development are severe.  
The term severe is locally interpreted as situations, which have a high impact, likely to 
result in loss of life, or a higher possibility of occurrence with a lower impact.  
 
Policy TRANS5 seeks to ensure that development does not harm highway safety and 
provides for sufficient parking and turning areas. 
 

6.14 The changes to the plans involve the omission of a number of carports previously 
approved namely for Plots 1, 2 and 3. Along with the relocation of the allocated parking 
spaces for Plot 2.  
 
After reviewing the proposal, the loss of the carports does not significantly alter the 
parking allocation for the development. All the dwellings have parking in accordance 
with standards which is considered acceptable. The changes to the plans will not 
therefore increase the pressure to park on the public highway.  
 
The development therefore continues to accord with Policy TRANS5 of SOLP. 
 

6.15 Conditions. 
 
The conditions attached to the parent reserved matters permission remain similar to 
those recommended with this new application and the changes it proposes. However, 
the wording has been updated to reflect the new local plan polices. 
 
For clarity the changes to the approved plans have had the following knock on effect to 
the conditions; 
 
Condition 1 has been altered to reflect the expiration of the reserved matters 
permission later this year. 
 
Condition 2 which sets out the list of the approved plans has been altered to reflect the 
new plans and also notes the previously approved plans. 
 
Condition 4 which relates to landscaping now reflects the plans accompanying this 
application and importantly requires the scheme to be implemented prior to the 
occupation of Plots 2, 3 and 5 which are the most prominent units in the development.  
 

Page 74



South Oxfordshire District Council – Planning Committee – 13 October 2021 

Condition 9 relates to tree protection and this has been amended to reflect the updated 
survey report submitted with the application. Usually such a condition would be worded 
to the effect that the approved protection measures should be in place prior to the 
commencement of development. However, development as a whole has already 
commenced in line with the previous permission and the conditions of that permission 
still bite. Therefore, the new tree protection condition is triggered by the carrying out of 
the development shown in this application.  

 
7.0 CONCLUSION 
7.1 The changes to the approved development do not result in a materially harmful impact 

to residential amenity of nearby properties or to highway safety. The special landscape 
character of this part of the AONB is conserved. The changes to the surface and the 
materials for the buildings, in conjunction with the attached conditions, ensure the 
development accords with the provisions of the development plan. 

 
8.0 RECOMMENDATION 
8.1 That Planning Permission is granted subject to the following conditions; 

 
 1 : Time Limit - Variation of Condition 

2 : Approved plans  
3 : Schedule of Materials 
4 : Landscaping implementation 
5 : External Lighting - General 
6 : No additional windows, doors or other openings 
7 : Withdrawal of Permitted Development Rights 
8 : Wildlife Protection (mitigation as approved) 
9 : Tree protection (implementation as approved) 
10 : Surface water drainage works (details required) 
11 : New vehicular access  
12 : Vision splay protection  
13 : Parking & Manoeuvring Areas Retained  
14 : Construction Traffic Management (details required) 
15 : No Garage conversion into accommodation 
 

 
Author:         Mr. P Bowers 
E-mail :         planning@southoxon.gov.uk  
Contact No:  01235 422600 

 

 

   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 75

mailto:planning@southoxon.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



LB

Play Area

Sports Court

52.9m

51.5m

White

Bryn Mawr

Manor

Gable

Keep

G
reen

Hill Rise

Mulberry

Fernbank

17

Clogwyn

View

Cross

G
ables

Down

C
rane

The Ways

A
shes

Summerfields

4

Bright Ravens

The Sycamores

5

1

Robins

Hill View

Mead

Chiltern

Little

Westwind

15
18

Outfield

Firs

Rosedale

Fairways

FERRY ROAD

WOODCOTE ROAD

w
A

LLIN
G

FO
RD

 RO
A

D

0 50

NOTE:
ALL DIMENSIONS MUST BE CHECKED ON SITE AND NOT SCALED FROM 
THIS DRAWING.
FOR USE IN PRECISE NAMED LOCATION ONLY.  COPYRIGHT RESERVED.

project title

drawing title

first issued drawn scale

job/drawing no/revision

status

revision date description

The  Studio, 70 Church  Road, Wheatley, Oxford, OX33 1LZ
01865 873936 info@andersonorr.com www.andersonorr.com

1:1000 @ A3

LOCATION PLAN

27/11/2018 IG

LAND OFF WOODCOTE ROAD, SOUTH
STOKE, OXON

18085 - L01 -

PLANNING

Appendix 1

P
age 77

A
genda Item

 10
P

21/S
2385/FU

L



PLOT 1

PLOT 2
PLOT 3

PLOT 4

PLOT 5

WOODCOTE ROAD

Visitor 
Parking

Visitor 
Parking

parking & 
turning area 

parking & 
turning area garage 

garage 

garage 

parking & 
turning area 

turning area 

post & rail fence and 
hedge planting 

post & rail fence and 
hedge planting 

post & rail fence and 
hedge planting 

feather edge fence and 
hedge planting 

proposed 
landscaping

hedge planting 

post & rail fence and 
hedge planting 

proposed access 

bins

bins

bins

bins

bikes

bikes

bikes

bikes

garden

garden

garden

garden garden

proposed feather 
edge fence

proposed feather 
edge fence

proposed feather 
edge fence & 

hedge planting 

post & rail 
fence and 

hedge 
planting parking 

plot 3 

hedge 
planting 

maintenance zone

existing fence retained

access for maintenance zone

feather 
edge 
fence  

parking 
plot 2 

LEGEND

Existing trees

Proposed trees

0 10

NOTE:
ALL DIMENSIONS MUST BE CHECKED ON SITE AND NOT SCALED FROM 
THIS DRAWING.
FOR USE IN PRECISE NAMED LOCATION ONLY.  COPYRIGHT RESERVED.

project title

drawing title

first issued drawn scale

job/drawing no/revision

status

revision date description

The Studio, 70 Church  Road, Wheatley, Oxford,  OX33  1LZ
01865 873936 info@andersonorr.com www.andersonorr.com

1:200  @  A2

PROPOSED SITE PLAN

19/04/21 IG

LAND OFF WOODCOTE ROAD, SOUTH
STOKE, OXON

20055 - PP0011 - A

PLANNING

A 24/05/21 New window to Plot 3

Appendix 2

Page 78



PLOT 1 PLOT 2 PLOT 3

PLOT 4 PLOT 5

LB

51.5m

Manor

Clogwyn

Cross

Ways

Summerfields

4

The Sycamores

5

1

Robins

Mead

approved new dwelling 
P17/S4042/FUL

(not yet constructed)

0 30

NOTE:
ALL DIMENSIONS MUST BE CHECKED ON SITE AND NOT SCALED FROM 
THIS DRAWING.
FOR USE IN PRECISE NAMED LOCATION ONLY.  COPYRIGHT RESERVED.

project title

drawing title

first issued drawn scale

job/drawing no/revision

status

revision date description

The  Studio, 70 Church  Road, Wheatley, Oxford, OX33 1LZ
01865 873936 info@andersonorr.com www.andersonorr.com

1:500  @  A3

PROPOSED BLOCK PLAN

04/09/19 IG

LAND OFF WOODCOTE ROAD, SOUTH
STOKE, OXON

20055 - PP1013 - A

PLANNING

A 19/04/21 Minor amendments to Plots 1,2 & 3

P
age 79



0 5

NOTE:
ALL DIMENSIONS MUST BE CHECKED ON SITE AND NOT SCALED FROM 
THIS DRAWING.
FOR USE IN PRECISE NAMED LOCATION ONLY.  COPYRIGHT RESERVED.

project title

drawing title

first issued drawn scale

job/drawing no/revision

status

revision date description

The Studio, 70 Church  Road, Wheatley, Oxford,  OX33  1LZ
01865 873936 info@andersonorr.com www.andersonorr.com

1:100  @  A2

PROPOSED ELEVATIONS

19/04/21 HH

RESIDENTIAL DEVELOPMENT,
WOODCOTE RD, SOUTH STOKE

20055 - PE1010 -

PLANNING

EAST ELEVATION NORTH ELEVATION

SOUTH ELEVATIONWEST ELEVATION

PLOT 1
DETACHED 3 BED RESIDENCE

Accommodation
Level Area (sq.m) Area (Sq.ft)

Ground 76.41 m² 822.42 ft²
First 73.23 m² 788.19 ft²

    Total 149.63 m² 1610.61 ft²

grey composite windows

natural slate roof

red brickwork

vertical hit-and-miss 
weatherboarding

grey composite windows

natural slate roof

red brickwork

vertical hit-and-miss 
weatherboarding

bat box

bird nesting box

P
age 80



Principal Entrance

garage

utility

lounge

kitchen

dining

hall

cup'd

coats
wc

bed 3

master bed

en-suite

bath

st.

bed 2

landing

st.

0 5

NOTE:
ALL DIMENSIONS MUST BE CHECKED ON SITE AND NOT SCALED FROM 
THIS DRAWING.
FOR USE IN PRECISE NAMED LOCATION ONLY.  COPYRIGHT RESERVED.

project title

drawing title

first issued drawn scale

job/drawing no/revision

status

revision date description

The Studio, 70 Church  Road, Wheatley, Oxford,  OX33  1LZ
01865 873936 info@andersonorr.com www.andersonorr.com

1:100  @  A2

PROPOSED FLOOR PLANS

19/04/21 HH

RESIDENTIAL DEVELOPMENT,
WOODCOTE RD, SOUTH STOKE

20055 - PP1030 -

PLANNING
GROUND FLOOR FIRST FLOOR

Accommodation
Level Area (sq.m) Area (Sq.ft)

Ground 76.41 m² 822.42 ft²
First 73.23 m² 788.19 ft²

    Total 149.63 m² 1610.61 ft²

PLOT 1
DETACHED 3 BED RESIDENCE

P
age 81



0 5

NOTE:
ALL DIMENSIONS MUST BE CHECKED ON SITE AND NOT SCALED FROM 
THIS DRAWING.
FOR USE IN PRECISE NAMED LOCATION ONLY.  COPYRIGHT RESERVED.

project title

drawing title

first issued drawn scale

job/drawing no/revision

status

revision date description

The Studio, 70 Church  Road, Wheatley, Oxford,  OX33  1LZ
01865 873936 info@andersonorr.com www.andersonorr.com

1:100  @  A2

PROPOSED ELEVATIONS PLOT 2& 3

19/04/21 IG

RESIDENTIAL DEVELOPMENT,
WOODCOTE RD, SOUTH STOKE

20055 - PE2010 - A

PLANNING

EAST ELEVATION NORTH ELEVATION

SOUTH ELEVATIONWEST ELEVATION

PLOT 2 & 3
SEMI-DETACHED 2 & 3 BED DWELLINGS

Accommodation Plot 2
Level Area (sq.m) Area (Sq.ft)

Plot 2 (G) 42.29 m² 455.18 ft²
Plot 2 (F) 42.29 m² 455.18 ft²

37.21 m² 400.53 ft²
    Total 121.79 m² 1310.89 ft²

Accommodation Plot 3
Level Area (sq.m) Area (Sq.ft)

Plot 3 (G) 60.98 m² 656.41 ft²
Plot 3 (F) 60.98 m² 656.41 ft²

37.21 m² 400.53 ft²
    Total 159.17 m² 1713.34 ft²

grey composite windows

clay tile roof

red brickwork

vertical hit-and-miss 
weatherboarding

1.8m high closeboard fence

grey composite windows

clay tile roof

red brickwork

vertical hit-and-miss 
weatherboarding

bat box

bat box

bird nesting box

A 24/05/21 New window to East Elevation

P
age 82



Principal Entrance

Principal Entrance

wc hall

utility
cup'd

utility
cup'd

lounge

dining
kitchen

hall

wc

Plot 2

Plot 3

kitchen

lounge

dining

books

master bed

bed 2

e/s

landing

st.

wc

bed 3

bed 2

bath

landing

st.

master bed

st.

en-suite

2m clear height

0 5

NOTE:
ALL DIMENSIONS MUST BE CHECKED ON SITE AND NOT SCALED FROM 
THIS DRAWING.
FOR USE IN PRECISE NAMED LOCATION ONLY.  COPYRIGHT RESERVED.

project title

drawing title

first issued drawn scale

job/drawing no/revision

status

revision date description

The Studio, 70 Church  Road, Wheatley, Oxford,  OX33  1LZ
01865 873936 info@andersonorr.com www.andersonorr.com

1:100  @  A2

PROPOSED FLOOR PLANS

19/04/21 HH

RESIDENTIAL DEVELOPMENT,
WOODCOTE RD, SOUTH STOKE

20055 - PP2030 - A

PLANNING

GROUND FLOOR FIRST FLOOR

Accommodation Plot 2
Level Area (sq.m) Area (Sq.ft)

Plot 2 (G) 42.29 m² 455.18 ft²
Plot 2 (F) 42.29 m² 455.18 ft²
    Total 84.58 m² 910.37 ft²

PLOT 2 & 3
SEMI-DETACHED 2 BED RESIDENCE

Accommodation Plot 3
Level Area (sq.m) Area (Sq.ft)

Plot 3 (G) 60.98 m² 656.41 ft²
Plot 3 (F) 60.98 m² 656.41 ft²
    Total 121.96 m² 1312.81 ft²

A 24/05/21 New window to East Elevation

P
age 83



PLOT 1

PLOT 2
PLOT 3

PLOT 4
PLOT 5

garage

bins

bins

bins

bins

bins

bikes

bikes

bikes

bikes

bikes

garden

garden

garden

garden
garden

maintenance zone

existing fence retained

access for maintenance zone

0 2 4 6 108 20

CLOGWYN
MANOR

WOODLAND / DERELICT ORCHARD AREA

FARMLAND

D
RI

V
EW

A
Y 

TO
C

LO
G

W
YN

 M
A

N
O

R

existing fence retained

REVISIONS
REV   DATE        COMMENT
________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________
A          03.01.19        MINOR REVISIONS TO  LAYOUT.
B         15.01.19         MINOR REVISIONS TO  HARD SURFACING & GATES.
C          22.09.19        LAYOUT REVISIONS TO PLOTS 4 AND 5.
D           26.09.19        REVISIONS AS PER CLIENT INSTRUCTIONS
E           03.08.21        REVISIONS TO LAYOUT AND GARDENS FROM PARKING CHANGES
F           04.08.21        REVISIONS TO PAVING MATERIALS
________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

CLIENT:

ANDERSON ORR ARCHITECTS
________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

PROJECT:

WOODCOTE ROAD
SOUTH STOKE
_______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

DRAWING TITLE:

PROPOSED HARDWORKS
LANDSCAPE PLAN
________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

DATE                              SCALE                        DRAWING NO      REV

NOV. 18    1:200@A1   0747.1.1 F
________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

ADAMS HABERMEHL
_____________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

CBF

KEY

P
age 84



PLOT 1

PLOT 2
PLOT 3

PLOT 4
PLOT 5

garage

bins

bins

bins

bins

bins

bikes

bikes

bikes

bikes

bikes

garden

garden

garden

garden
garden

maintenance zone

existing fence retained

access for maintenance zone

NATIVE HEDGEROW TO BOUNDARY.
CLEAR GROUND PRIOR TO PLANTING
AND MULCH TO FINISH
51 NO.  ACER CAMPESTRE
95 NO. CARPINUS BETULUS
60 NO.  CORYLUS AVELLANA
166 NO. CRATAEGUS MONOGYNA
25 NO.  EUONYMUS EUROPAEUS
208 NO. ILEX AQUIFOLIUM
117 NO. FAGUS SYLVATICA
94 NO. LIGUSTRUM VULGARE
12 NO.  PRUNUS SPINOSA
47 NO.  VIBURNUM OPULUS

HEDGEROW TO GARDEN
60 NO. FAGUS SYLVATICAHEDGEROW TO GARDEN

82 NO. FAGUS SYLVATICA

HEDGEROW TO GARDEN
149 NO. FAGUS SYLVATICA

HEDGEROW TO GARDEN
130NO. FAGUS SYLVATICA

HEDGEROW
33 NO. FAGUS SYLVATICA

NATIVE HEDGEROW TO ENTRANCE
21 NO. ACER CAMPESTRE
21NO.  CARPINUS BETULUS
15 NO. CORYLUS AVELLANA
32 NO. CRATAEGUS MONOGYNA
6 NO. EUONYMUS EUROPAEUS
39 NO. FAGUS SYLVATICA
46 NO. ILEX AQUIFOLIUM
18 NO. LIGUSTRUM VULGARE
7 NO. VIBURNUM OPULUS

3 NO. SKIMMIA
'KEW GREEN'

10 NO. GERANIUM
'ING. VAR'

6 NO. ANEMONE
'HONORINE JOBERT'

3 NO. HEBE RAKIENSIS

3 NO.HELLEBORUS
ORIENTALIS

9 NO. GERANIUM
'ING. VAR'

80 NO.
PERSICARIA
'DONALD
LOWNDES'

5 NO. ANEMONE
'HONORINE JOBERT'

6 NO. ROSMARINUS
'MISS JESSOP'S VAR.'

3 NO. HEBE
'MARJORIE'

2 NO. SKIMMIA
'KEW GREEN'

3 NO. CHOISYA
'AZTEC PEARL'

5 NO. RUDBECKIA
'GOLDSTURN'

7 NO. CAMPANULA
PORTENSCHLAGIANA

3 NO.HELLEBORUS
ORIENTALIS

3 NO. CHOISYA 'AZTEC PEARL'

3 NO. HEBE RAKIENSIS

85 NO. VINCA
MINOR 'ALBA'

17 NO. GERANIUM 'ING. VAR'

8 NO. CAREX 'BOWLES GOLD'

26 NO. GERANIUM 'ROZANNE'

2 NO. ACER
CAMPESTRE 'ELSRIJK'
12-14CM

2 NO. BETULA 'FASCINATION'

1 NO. BETULA 'FASCINATION'

2 NO. ACER CAMPESTRE 'ELSRIJK'
16-18CM

3 NO. FAGUS SYLVATICA 14-16CM GIRTH

14 NO. GERANIUM
'ROZANNE'

110 NO.PERSICARIA
'DONALD LOWNDES'

2 NO. PINUS NIGRA

2 NO. PINUS NIGRA

2 NO. PINUS NIGRA

1 NO.FAGUS SYLVATICA
14-16CM GIRTH

4 NO. ILEX AQUIFOLIUM

2 NO. FAGUS SYLVATICA - 8-10cm

4 NO. ILEX AQUIFOLIUM

1 NO. ILEX AQUIFOLIUM

2 NO. ILEX AQUIFOLIUM
2 NO. FAGUS SYLVATICA 8-10cm

2 NO. ILEX AQUIFOLIUM

3 NO. PINUS NIGRA

EXISTING TREE LINE
REMOVE DEAD WOOD AND MAKE
TREES SAFE.  CAREFULLY IDENTIFY
GAPS AND OPPORTUNITIES FOR
REPLACEMENT LONG TERM TREE
PLANTING TO REINFORCE
BOUNDARY SCREEN

EXISTING TREE LINE -
REMOVE DEAD WOOD AND MAKE
TREES SAFE.  CAREFULLY IDENTIFY
GAPS AND OPPORTUNITIES FOR
REPLACEMENT LONG TERM TREE
PLANTING TO REINFORCE
BOUNDARY SCREEN

1 NO. FAGUS SYLVATICA  18-20CM GIRTH

3 NO.FAGUS SYLVATICA
12-14CM GIRTH

HEDGEROW TO GARDEN
120 NO. FAGUS SYLVATICA

6 NO.ROSA 'THE FAIRY'

4 NO. RUDBECKIA 'GOLDSTURN'

5 NO. HEMMEROCALLIS 'CREAM DROP'

7 NO. ILEX AQUIFOLIUM

2 NO. ILEX AQUIFOLIUM

5 NO. ILEX
AQUIFOLIUM

1 NO. PRUNUS 'ACCOLADE'

14 NO. GERANIUM 'ING. VAR'

6 NO. VIBURNUM
DAVIDII

1 NO. PRUNUS
'ACCOLADE'

NOTE
BOUNDARY HEDGE AND TREE PLANTING
PROPOSALS MAINTAIN AND INCREASE THE
ESTABLISHED BOUNDARY LANDSCAPE
SCREENING USING EVERGREEN AND LEAF
RETAINING NATIVE TREE AND HEDGEROW
SHRUB SPECIES

HEDGEROW TO BOUNDARY.
114 NO. FAGUS SYLVATICA SM

60NO. VINCA MINOR ALBA

0 2 4 6 108 20

CLOGWYN
MANOR

WOODLAND / DERELICT ORCHARD AREA

FARMLAND

D
RI

V
EW

A
Y 

TO
C

LO
G

W
YN

 M
A

N
O

R

existing fence retained

HEDGEROW 39NO. FAGUS SYLVATICA

LAWN

LAWN

LAWN
LAWN LAWN

LAWN

LAWN
LAWN

LAWN

LA
W

N

LAWN LAWN

LAWN

LAWN

34NO. VINCA MINOR ALBA

REVISIONS
REV  DATE        COMMENT
________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________
A           01.12.18        REVISIONS TO TREE SPEC
B           03.01.19        MINOR REVISIONS TO DRIVE LAYOUT AND PLANTING TO SUIT, ADDITIONAL TREES ADDED.
C          15.01.19        MINOR HARD MATERIALS AND PLANTING REVISIONS.
D          22.09.19        LAYOUT REVISIONS TO PLOTS 4 AND 5.
E           26.09.19        REVISIONS AS PER CLIENT INSTRUCTIONS
F           03.08.21        REVISIONS TO LAYOUT AND GARDENS FROM PARKING CHANGES
________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

CLIENT:

ANDERSON ORR ARCHITECTS
________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

PROJECT:

WOODCOTE ROAD
SOUTH STOKE
_______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

DRAWING TITLE:

PROPOSED PLANTING PLAN
________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

DATE                         SCALE                               DRAWING NO      REV

NOV. 18   1:200@A1    0747.1.2  F
________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

_____________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

SHRUB PLANTING,
& PLANTING DIVISIONS

PROPOSED  TREE PLANTING

RETAINED SITE TREES
SEE ARBORICULTURAL REPORT FOR
ALL DETAIL, INCLUDING EXTENT OF
TREE ROOT PROTECTION AREAS

KEY

PROPOSED GRASS AREAS

PROPOSED HEDGES

SITE TREES REMOVED
SEE ARBORICTURAL REPORT

P
age 85



PLOT 1

PLOT 2
PLOT 3

PLOT 4

PLOT 5

WOODCOTE ROAD

Visitor 
Parking

Visitor 
Parking

carport 
plot 2 & 3 

parking & 
turning area 

parking & 
turning area garage 

garage 

garage 

carport 
parking & 

turning area 

turning area 

post & rail fence and 
hedge planting 

post & rail fence and 
hedge planting 

post & rail fence and 
hedge planting 

feather edge fence and 
hedge planting 

proposed 
landscaping

hedge planting 

post & rail fence and 
hedge planting 

proposed access 

bins

bins

bins

bins

bins

bikes

bikes

bikes

bikes

bikes

garden

garden

garden

garden garden

proposed feather 
edge fence

proposed feather 
edge fence

proposed feather 
edge fence & 

hedge planting 

post & rail 
fence and 

hedge 
planting parking 

plot 3 

hedge 
planting 

maintenance zone

existing fence retained

access for maintenance zone

feather 
edge 
fence  

LEGEND

Existing trees

Proposed trees

0 10

NOTE:
ALL DIMENSIONS MUST BE CHECKED ON SITE AND NOT SCALED FROM 
THIS DRAWING.
FOR USE IN PRECISE NAMED LOCATION ONLY.  COPYRIGHT RESERVED.

project title

drawing title

first issued drawn scale

job/drawing no/revision

status

revision date description

The Studio, 70 Church  Road, Wheatley, Oxford,  OX33  1LZ
01865 873936 info@andersonorr.com www.andersonorr.com

1:200  @  A2

PROPOSED SITE PLAN

04/09/19 IG

LAND OFF WOODCOTE ROAD, SOUTH
STOKE, OXON

18085 - PP1012 - A

PLANNING

A 27/09/19 Landscape amendments

Appendix 3

Page 86

SAV_PALBOW
Typewriter
Approved Layout - P19/S2865/RM



South Oxfordshire District Council – Planning Committee – 13 October 2021 

  

 

 
 APPLICATION NO. P21/S2637/FUL 
 APPLICATION TYPE FULL APPLICATION 
 REGISTERED 8.6.2021 
 PARISH DIDCOT 
 WARD MEMBER(S) Celia Wilson 

Axel Macdonald 
Mocky Khan 

 APPLICANT M L King 
 SITE Land at 4 Ernest Road, Didcot, OX11 8QH 
 PROPOSAL Proposed new dwelling. (As amplified by energy 

statement received 31 August 2021). 
 OFFICER Paul Bowers 

 

 
1.0 INTRODUCTION AND PROPOSAL 
1.1 This report sets out the officer’s recommendation that planning permission should be 

granted having regard to the material planning considerations and the development 
plan.  
 

1.2 The application is referred to planning committee because the recommendation by 
your officers differs from the views of the Didcot Town Council.  
 

1.3 The application site comprises part of the rear garden of one half of a semi-detached 
pair of dwellings within the built confines of Didcot located on Ernest Road. The site 
backs on to Edmonds Court to the west. A map extract identifying the site is attached 
at Appendix 1. 
 

1.4 The application seeks planning permission from the council to erect a single storey, 
one bedroom property with attached garage of contemporary design with mono 
pitched roofs and timber cladding for the walls.  
 

1.5 Reduced copies of the plans accompanying the application are attached as Appendix 
2 to this report. All the plans and representations can be viewed on the council’s 
website www.southoxon.gov.uk under the planning application reference number. 
 

2.0 SUMMARY OF CONSULTATIONS & REPRESENTATIONS 
2.1 Didcot Town Council – Objects to the application for the following reasons; 

- Insufficient parking. 
- Loss of on street parking in Edmonds Court.  
- Unneighbourly. 
- Out of keeping, and 
- Overly bulky. 

 
Third Party Representations – 5 x letters of objection covering the following issues;  

- The design of the building is out of keeping.  
- The proposal is unneighbourly to 2A and 2B and Ernest Road.  
- Impact of the noise from rain on the roof surface. 
- Concern over the loss of vegetation and habitats.  
- Loss of parking on Edmonds Court.  
- No electrical charging point. 

 
Drainage – No objection subject to condition. 

Page 87

Agenda Item 11

http://www.southoxon.gov.uk/ccm/planning/ApplicationDetails.jsp?REF=P21/S2637/FUL
http://www.southoxon.gov.uk/


South Oxfordshire District Council – Planning Committee – 13 October 2021 

  

 
Highways Liaison Officer – No objection subject to condition.  
 
Waste Management Officer – Comments.  
 
Energy Assessor – No objection.   
 

3.0 RELEVANT PLANNING HISTORY 
3.1 P19/S2042/PEO - Advice provided (19/07/2019) 

Construct a new 2/3 bedroom bungalow accessed from Edmonds Courts. 
 
P17/S2776/HH - Approved (27/10/2017) 
Proposed demolition of outside toilet. Proposed erection of single storey rear extension. 
Proposed conversion of garage and rebuilding/ conversion of workshop to side of the 
property. Proposed widening of existing access. 

 
4.0 ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT ASSESSMENT 
4.1 N/A 

 
5.0 POLICY & GUIDANCE 
5.1 Development Plan Policies 

 South Oxfordshire Local Plan 2035 (SOLP) Policies: 
DES1  -  Delivering High Quality Development 
DES10  -  Carbon Reduction 
DES2  -  Enhancing Local Character 
DES3  -  Design and Access Statements 
DES5  -  Outdoor Amenity Space 
DES6  -  Residential Amenity 
ENV1  -  Landscape and Countryside 
EP4  -  Flood Risk 
H16  -  Backland and Infill Development and Redevelopment 
H2  -  New Housing in Didcot 
INF4  -  Water Resources 
STRAT1  -  The Overall Strategy 
STRAT 3 – Didcot GardenTown 
TRANS5  -  Consideration of Development Proposals 
 

5.2 Neighbourhood Plan 
  
5.3 Supplementary Planning Guidance/Documents 

 South Oxfordshire Design Guide 2016 (SODG 2016) 
  
5.4 National Planning Policy Framework and Planning Practice Guidance 

 
5.5 Other Relevant Legislation 
 Human Rights Act 1998 

The provisions of the Human Rights Act 1998 have been taken into account in the 
processing of the application and the preparation of this report. 

 Equality Act 2010 
In determining this planning application the Council has regard to its equalities 
obligations including its obligations under Section 149 of the Equality Act 2010. 

 
 
 
 

Page 88

http://www.southoxon.gov.uk/ccm/planning/ApplicationDetails.jsp?REF=P19/S2042/PEO
http://www.southoxon.gov.uk/ccm/planning/ApplicationDetails.jsp?REF=P17/S2776/HH


South Oxfordshire District Council – Planning Committee – 13 October 2021 

  

6.0 PLANNING CONSIDERATIONS 
6.1 Section 38 (6) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 requires 

applications for planning permission be determined in accordance with the 
Development Plan unless material considerations indicate otherwise.  
 
Section 70 (2) of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 provides that the local 
planning authority shall have regard to the provisions of the Development Plan, so far 
as material to the application, and to any other material considerations. 
 
Development which is not in accordance with an up-to-date development plan should 
be refused unless material considerations indicate otherwise. 
 
In the case of this application South Oxfordshire Local Plan 2035 (SOLP) comprises the 
development plan and the policies within it must be considered in relation to the 
material considerations relevant to this proposal. 
 

6.2 The main issues to consider in relation to this proposal are as follows; 
 

- The principle of the development in terms of housing policy.  
- Neighbour impact. 
- Impact on the character and appearance of the area.  
- Highway impact. 
- Amenity space. 
- Carbon reduction. 
- Drainage.  
- Ecology.  
- Community Infrastructure Levy. 

 
6.3 The principle of development in terms of housing policy. 

 
Policy STRAT1 of the South Oxfordshire Local Plan sets out the overall strategy for 
development in the district. The policy includes specific reference to focussing major 
new development in Science Vale and Didcot Garden Town. In addition to protecting 
and enhancing the countryside and particularly those areas within the two AONBs and 
Oxford Green Belt by ensuring that outside of the towns and villages any change 
relates to very specific needs such as those of the agricultural industry or enhancement 
of the environment. 
 

6.4 Policy H1 relates to delivering new homes and states that the residential development 
of previously developed land will be permitted within and adjacent to the existing built 
up areas of towns, larger villages and smaller villages. 
 

6.5 This site is located within the confines of Didcot. It is surrounded on all sides by existing 
residential properties and meets the definition of infill development. 
 
I am satisfied that in principle a dwelling can be erected here in line with development 
plan policy.  
 

6.6 Neighbour impact. 
 
Policy DES6 of SOLP relates to residential amenity and requires that development 
proposals should demonstrate that they will not result in significant adverse impacts on 
the amenity of neighbouring uses, when considering both individual and cumulative 
impacts in relation to loss of privacy, day light and sunlight, dominance or visual 

Page 89



South Oxfordshire District Council – Planning Committee – 13 October 2021 

  

intrusion, noise or vibration, smell dust, heat, odour or other emissions, pollution and 
external lighting.  
 

6.7 The main impact of the development will be to the properties which share a physical 
boundary with the site at numbers 2, 2A and 2B Ernest Road. These properties share a 
rear boundary with the northern side boundary of the application site. The orientation of 
the properties is such that numbers 2A and 2B will have the building sited along the full 
extent of their rear boundary.  
 

6.8 The proposed building is single storey. It does not include a first floor and consequently 
there are no high-level windows looking down and into the adjoining properties. What 
windows are proposed are at ground floor level and will primarily look into its own 
garden. In my view at this level it does not result in a materially harmful level of 
overlooking of any adjoining property.  
 

6.9 The building at its highest point will be 3.8 metres. This would be 1.8 metres higher 
than the height of a 2 metre boundary fence. 
 
The neighbours have provided photographs from their properties looking towards the 
location of the building. Its siting here will have some impact in terms of bulk and mass 
and overshowing of the gardens due to its location to the south. This impact will be 
limited in my view and impacts less so on the internal spaces of those properties in my 
judgement. 
 

6.10 It is worth noting that within the rear garden of the existing property a building for 
incidental purposes could be erected up to 4 metres in height without needing planning 
permission from the council. This possibility recognises that such a building would have 
an acceptable impact on neighbour amenity. I consider this fact has some weight in 
considering the impact of the current proposal. 
 

6.11 The neighbours have raised concern about the noise and disturbance caused by rain 
fall on the material proposed for the roof. In my view this does not amount to a harmful 
impact and the impact of rain on structures within gardens is an excepted one. 
 

6.12 On balance I am of the view that this single storey building will have some impact on 
these properties given the size and shape of the gardens however that impact is not so 
significant that it would in my view be materially harmful. 
 
I am satisfied the proposal it would accord with Policy DES6 of SOLP.  
 

6.13 Impact on the character and visual amenity of the area.  
 
Policy DES1 of SOLP seeks to ensure that all new development is of a high quality 
design subject to a series of criteria.  
 
Policy DES2 of SOLP states that all new development must be designed to reflect the 
positive features that make up the character of the local area and should both 
physically and visually enhance and complement the surroundings. 
 

6.14 The proposed design and materials are not typical of the area. The proposed dwelling  
is a unique design located at the end of a cul de sac. The use of timber and its siting at 
the end of an existing established garden could appear as a modern ancillary structure. 
In addition, although it differs in scale, material and form from the existing two storey 
house it will been seen in the context of the back drop of the larger dwellings but also 
importantly along side the large extent of communal flat roof garages. 

Page 90



South Oxfordshire District Council – Planning Committee – 13 October 2021 

  

6.15 In my view the proposed design in this location whilst visible does not create a harmful 
impact that would detract from the areas character when that character is a mixture of 
the rears of two storey houses, flat roof garage blocks and larger new flatted 
development fronting on to Park Road. 
 
I am satisfied that in this location the proposal accords with policies DES1 and DES2 of 
SOLP.  
 

6.16 Amenity space. 
 
Policy DES5 of SOLP relates to outdoor amenity space and requires that a private 
outdoor garden or amenity areas should be provided for all new dwellings. The amount 
of land should be provided for amenity space will be determined by the size of the 
dwelling.  
 
The South Oxfordshire Design Guide sets out the minimum amount of private amenity 
space (i.e. rear garden) based on the number bedrooms the property has. For 1 
bedroom units they should be providing for 35 square metres, 50 square metres for two 
bedroom units and for 3 bedroom units and above 100 square metres. 
 
The inability to provide these minimum standards can be an indication that what is 
being proposed is an overdevelopment of the site.  
 

6.17 The rear garden of the proposed dwelling allows for 55 square metres which is above 
what a two  bedroom dwelling would be required to provide. 
 
The existing property is shown to retain 100 square metres of garden which is in line 
with the council’s standards for a 3 bedroom and above property. 
  

6.18 The site can accommodate a small dwelling and provide adequate levels of amenity in 
line with the design guide and Policy DES5.  
 

6.19 Parking and highway safety. 
 
With respect to highway safety matters the advice from Central Government set out in 
the National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) is as follows: 
 
Development should only be prevented or refused on transport grounds where the 
residual cumulative impacts of the development are severe.  
 
The term severe is locally interpreted as situations, which have a high impact, likely to 
result in loss of life, or a higher possibility of occurrence with a lower impact.  
 
Policy TRANS5 seeks to ensure that development does not harm highway safety and 
provides for sufficient parking and turning areas. It also requires that development 
provides for facilities to support the take up of electric and/or low emission vehicles. 
 

6.20 The proposal seeks the construction of a one/two-bedroom dwelling, a single parking 
space has been provided within the curtilage on the site.  
 
The site is accessed via Edmonds Court and a new vehicular access will be provided. 
 
Given the characteristics of the carriageway, vehicular traffic and speeds are 
considered to be relatively low.  

Page 91



South Oxfordshire District Council – Planning Committee – 13 October 2021 

  

Therefore, the proposal is unlikely to have a significant adverse impact on the highway 
network. 
 

6.21 Planning conditions are proposed in section 8.2 of this report which require the new 
access to be constructed to OCC standards, that vision splays are provided and 
retained and a detailed plan showing the exact space for a single car is also provided 
for approval before the building is occupied. In addition, a condition is also proposed to 
ensure that the details of an electrical charging point is provided.  
 
In conjunction with these conditions the proposal will accord with Policy TRANS5 of 
SOLP.  
 

6.22 It is worth noting that the Didcot Town Council has raised concern that by creating a 
dwelling and access on Edmond Court it will reduce the ability to park on the highway.  
 
This is a matter that has been raised previously for a dwelling in Didcot which was the 
subject of an appeal where the Planning Inspector allowed the development and 
awarded costs against the council to the applicant.  In your officer’s view this is also not 
a reason to resist this development.  
 

6.23 Drainage. 
 
Policy INF4 states that all development proposals must demonstrate that there is or will 
be adequate water supply, surface water, foul drainage and sewerage treatment 
capacity to serve the whole development. 
 

6.24 The council’s Drainage Engineer has considered the proposal, the submitted 
information and the site circumstances and has concluded that in relation to both 
surface water and foul water drainage the development will be acceptable and accord 
with Policy INF4 providing that conditions requiring detail relating to surface water is 
attached to the planning permission.  
 

6.25 Carbon reduction.  
 
Policy DES10 states that planning permission will only be granted for new build 
residential development that achieves a 40% reduction in carbon emissions compared 
with a code 2013 Building Regulations compliant base and that this reduction is to be 
secured through renewable energy and other low carbon technologies.  
 
The policy also requires that an energy statement will be submitted to demonstrate 
compliance with this policy.  
 

6.26 An energy statement including SAP calculations and monitoring afterwards has been 
submitted and considered by the council’s appointed assessor.  
 
What has been supplied is considered compliant with Policy DES10.  
 

6.27 Ecology. 
 
Policy ENV3 of SOLP states that development should not result in a net loss of bio-
diversity and should result in a net gain.  
 
This proposal results in the loss of an extent of garden land. In ecological terms the 
impact is not likely to be significant. However a condition is proposed to ensure the 

Page 92



South Oxfordshire District Council – Planning Committee – 13 October 2021 

  

provision of a bird box on the new dwelling providing a net gain required by Policy 
ENV.3 
 

6.28 CIL. 
 
The development is CIL liable to the amount of £7719.55 

 
7.0 CONCLUSION 
7.1 The development provides for a single storey one/two bedroom property within one of 

the four towns in the district and in a sustainable location. It provides for adequate 
levels of amenity space and parking both for the new dwelling and the existing. The 
juxtaposition of the new dwelling to the rear gardens of adjoining properties will create 
an impact on amenity but this is limited due to the single storey nature and height of the 
proposed building to the extent that it does not create material planning harm.  
 
Overall, the proposal accords with the development in conjunction with the attached 
conditions.  

 
8.0 RECOMMENDATION 
8.1 That Planning Permission is granted subject to the following conditions: 
 
 

 
Standard conditions 
1 : Commencement three years - Full Planning Permission 
2 : Approved plans  
 
Pre-commencement conditions 
3 : Surface water drainage works (details required) 
4 : Plan of Car Parking Provision (specified number of spaces)  
 
Prior to occupation conditions 
5 : New vehicular access  
6 : Vision splay dimensions  
7 : Electric charging point details 
8 : Energy Statement Verification 
9 : Bird Box 
 
Compliance condition 
10 : Materials as on planning application form 
 

 
Author:         Mr. P Bowers 
E-mail :         planning@southoxon.gov.uk  
Contact No:  01235 422600 

 

 

   

 

 

 

 

 

Page 93

mailto:planning@southoxon.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 1

P
age 95

A
genda Item

 11
P

21/S
2637/FU

L



NOTE: 
ALL DIMENSIONS MUST CHECKED ON SITE AND ANY DISCREPANCIES MUST BE REPORTED TO THE ARCHITECT PRE-CONSTRUCTION

WRITTEN DIMENSIONS TO BE TAKEN AS PREFERENCE TO SCALED DIMENSIONS
© 2021 BLACKWATER STUDIO

SITE
4 Ernest Road, Didcot, Oxon OX11 8QH

E: INFO@BLACKWATERSTUDIO.CO.UK

WWW.BLACKWATERSTUDIO.CO.UK

T: 01865 686478

HILLCROFT, NEWINGTON, WALLINGFORD, OXON OX10 7AH

DRAWN BY
S S

CHECKED BY
F C

DRG NO.
1043.G.8

PROJECT
Proposed new dwelling

BLACKWATER
S  T  U  D  I  O

CLIENT
Mr & Mrs L King, 4 Ernest Road, Didcot, Oxon

S I T E    P L A N

L O C A T I O N    P L A N

E  R  N
  E  S  T         R  O

  A
  D

    

N 

00 10.0m 40.0m 20.0m 1:500 @ A2
00 25.0m 100.0m 50.0m 1:1250 @ A2

N 

E  D  M  O  N  D  S         C  T

Profile of existing dwelling

Existing parking at front of No.4 unaltered

Site boundary

New site boundary

Proposed rear garden

1no parking bay for new dwelling

Location of proposed dwelling

ISSUE
Planning V.1

DATE
25.03.2021

Appendix 2

P
age 96



NOTE: 
ALL DIMENSIONS MUST CHECKED ON SITE AND ANY DISCREPANCIES MUST BE REPORTED TO THE ARCHITECT PRE-CONSTRUCTION

WRITTEN DIMENSIONS TO BE TAKEN AS PREFERENCE TO SCALED DIMENSIONS
© 2021 BLACKWATER STUDIO

00 2.0m 8.0m 4.0m 1:100 @ A2

SITE
4 Ernest Road, Didcot, Oxon OX11 8QH

E: INFO@BLACKWATERSTUDIO.CO.UK

WWW.BLACKWATERSTUDIO.CO.UK

T: 01865 686478

HILLCROFT, NEWINGTON, WALLINGFORD, OXON OX10 7AH

DRAWN BY
S S

CHECKED BY
F C

DRG NO.
1043.G.1

PROJECT
Proposed new dwelling

BLACKWATER
S  T  U  D  I  O

ISSUE
Planning V.1

DATE
25.03.2021

CLIENT
Mr & Mrs L King, 4 Ernest Road, Didcot, Oxon

P R O P O S E D    P L O T    P L A N

E X I S T I N G    P L O T    P L A N

P
age 97



S I T E    L A Y O U T    P L A N

100m2 garden area retained for No.4

55m2 rear garden proposed for new dwelling

new 1.8mh close board timber fence to new site boundary

existing boundary treatments unaltered

new parking bay to front of site 5.7m x 3.0m

new 1.8mh close board timber fence to north and south boundary 

new 0.9mh close board timber fence to west boundary

visibility splays provided at front of site 
to be unobstructed 2.0m x 2.0m

refuse and recycling store provided to front of dwelling

profile of existing dwelling

NOTE: 
ALL DIMENSIONS MUST CHECKED ON SITE AND ANY DISCREPANCIES MUST BE REPORTED TO THE ARCHITECT PRE-CONSTRUCTION

WRITTEN DIMENSIONS TO BE TAKEN AS PREFERENCE TO SCALED DIMENSIONS
© 2021 BLACKWATER STUDIO

SITE
4 Ernest Road, Didcot, Oxon OX11 8QH

E: INFO@BLACKWATERSTUDIO.CO.UK

WWW.BLACKWATERSTUDIO.CO.UK

T: 01865 686478

HILLCROFT, NEWINGTON, WALLINGFORD, OXON OX10 7AH

DRAWN BY
S S

CHECKED BY
F C

DRG NO.
1043.G.7

PROJECT
Proposed new dwelling

BLACKWATER
S  T  U  D  I  O

CLIENT
Mr & Mrs L King, 4 Ernest Road, Didcot, Oxon

00 2.0m 8.0m 4.0m 1:100 @ A2

ISSUE
Planning V.1

DATE
25.03.2021

P
age 98



NOTE: 
ALL DIMENSIONS MUST CHECKED ON SITE AND ANY DISCREPANCIES MUST BE REPORTED TO THE ARCHITECT PRE-CONSTRUCTION

WRITTEN DIMENSIONS TO BE TAKEN AS PREFERENCE TO SCALED DIMENSIONS
© 2020 BLACKWATER STUDIO

00 1.0m 4.0m 2.0m 1:50 @ A2

P R O P O S E D   F R O N T   E L E V A T I O N

P R O P O S E D   R E A R   E L E V A T I O N

P R O P O S E D   S I D E   E L E V A T I O N

P R O P O S E D   S I D E   E L E V A T I O N

SITE
4 Ernest Road, Didcot, Oxon OX11 8QH

E: INFO@BLACKWATERSTUDIO.CO.UK

WWW.BLACKWATERSTUDIO.CO.UK

T: 01865 686478

HILLCROFT, NEWINGTON, WALLINGFORD, OXON OX10 7AH

DRAWN BY
S S

CHECKED BY
F C

DRG NO.
1043.G.4

PROJECT
Proposed new dwelling

BLACKWATER
S  T  U  D  I  O

CLIENT
Mr & Mrs L King, 4 Ernest Road, Didcot, Oxon

ISSUE
Planning V.1

DATE
25.03.2021

P
age 99



NOTE: 
ALL DIMENSIONS MUST CHECKED ON SITE AND ANY DISCREPANCIES MUST BE REPORTED TO THE ARCHITECT PRE-CONSTRUCTION

WRITTEN DIMENSIONS TO BE TAKEN AS PREFERENCE TO SCALED DIMENSIONS
© 2021 BLACKWATER STUDIO

00 1.0m 4.0m 2.0m 1:50 @ A2

P R O P O S E D    G R O U N D    F L O O R    P L A N

BEDROOM

SHOWER’

HALL

STUDY

KITCHEN

LOUNGE

STORE

SITE
4 Ernest Road, Didcot, Oxon OX11 8QH

E: INFO@BLACKWATERSTUDIO.CO.UK

WWW.BLACKWATERSTUDIO.CO.UK

T: 01865 686478

HILLCROFT, NEWINGTON, WALLINGFORD, OXON OX10 7AH

DRAWN BY
S S

CHECKED BY
F C

DRG NO.
1043.G.2

PROJECT
Proposed new dwelling

BLACKWATER
S  T  U  D  I  O

CLIENT
Mr & Mrs L King, 4 Ernest Road, Didcot, Oxon

ISSUE
Planning V.1

DATE
25.03.2021

P
age 100



NOTE: 
ALL DIMENSIONS MUST CHECKED ON SITE AND ANY DISCREPANCIES MUST BE REPORTED TO THE ARCHITECT PRE-CONSTRUCTION

WRITTEN DIMENSIONS TO BE TAKEN AS PREFERENCE TO SCALED DIMENSIONS
© 2021 BLACKWATER STUDIO

00 1.0m 4.0m 2.0m 1:50 @ A2

P R O P O S E D    R O O F    P L A N SITE
4 Ernest Road, Didcot, Oxon OX11 8QH

E: INFO@BLACKWATERSTUDIO.CO.UK

WWW.BLACKWATERSTUDIO.CO.UK

T: 01865 686478

HILLCROFT, NEWINGTON, WALLINGFORD, OXON OX10 7AH

DRAWN BY
S S

CHECKED BY
F C

DRG NO.
1043.G.3

PROJECT
Proposed new dwelling

BLACKWATER
S  T  U  D  I  O

CLIENT
Mr & Mrs L King, 4 Ernest Road, Didcot, Oxon

ISSUE
Planning V.1

DATE
25.03.2021

P
age 101



T
his page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	7 P20/S3244/FUL - Land to the North West of Stoke Talmage
	Appendices A-C
	Appendix A
	Appendix B
	Sheets and Views
	003


	Appendix B1 Landscaping Proposals drwgno Figure 6.9 Rev C
	Appendix B2 SD-01-DNO Substation Elevations and Dimensions Plan_rev02
	Appendix B3 SD-02-Customer Substation Elevations and Dimensions Plan_rev02
	Appendix B3a SD-04-Stock Fence and CCTV Elevation_rev01
	Appendix B3aa SD-08-Inverter Elevations and Dimensions Plan_rev02
	Appendix B4 SD-10-Panel Cross Section 25 Degree Tilt_rev02
	Appendix B5 SD-13-Substation Compound Plan_rev01
	Appendix C


	8 P21/S1388/FUL - Culham Science Centre, Clifton Hampden
	Appendices 1-2
	Appendix 1
	Appendix 2_1
	Appendix 2_2
	Appendix 2_3
	Appendix 2_4
	Appendix 2_5
	Appendix 2_6
	Appendix 2_7
	Appendix 2_8
	Appendix 2_9
	Appendix 2_10
	Appendix 2_11


	9 P21/S1805/HH - Vincent House, High Street, Long Wittenham
	Appendices 1-2
	1 2021-09-23 OS extract
	2 Ground Floor Site Plan Proposed drwgno J832 RG210 Rev A
	3 Floor Plans Proposed J832 RG212 Rev B
	4 Elevations and Section Proposed drwgno J832 RG213 Rev A
	5 Roof Site Plan Proposed J832 RG211Rev A


	10 P21/S2385/FUL - Land at Woodcote Road, South Stoke
	Appendices 1-3
	Appendix 1
	Sheets
	L01 - LOCATION PLAN


	Appendix 2_1
	Sheets
	PP0011 - PROPOSED SITE PLAN


	Appendix 2_2
	Sheets
	PP1013 - PROPOSED BLOCK PLAN


	Appendix 2_3
	Sheets
	PE1010 - PROPOSED ELEVATIONS


	Appendix 2_4
	Sheets
	PP1030 - PROPOSED FLOOR PLANS


	Appendix 2_5
	Sheets
	PE2010 - PROPOSED ELEVATIONS PLOT 2& 3


	Appendix 2_6
	Sheets
	PP2030 - PROPOSED FLOOR PLANS


	Appendix 2_7
	Appendix 2_8
	Appendix 3
	Sheets
	PP1012 - PROPOSED SITE PLAN




	11 P21/S2637/FUL - Land at 4 Ernest Road, Didcot
	Appendices 1-2
	Appendix 1
	Appendix 2_1
	Appendix 2_2
	Appendix 2_3
	Appendix 2_4
	Appendix 2_5
	Appendix 2_6



